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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-Life
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

Review

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(“Sino-Life” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (“Year
2014") on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

Over the past year, taking advantage of our solid business
platform, we continued to extend our coverage actively, and
enhance our corporate image and brand visibility. We remain
committed to taking us to a higher level of professional and high-
quality services. Our efforts in a wide array of horizons were
paying off with promising results.

On 15 November 2014, the Group ceased the management of
operations of Chongging Zhong County Funeral Parlour ( ZE &
B EEE) ("ZCFP"), pursuant to the rescission agreement
signed with the owner of ZCFP. The Group believes that the
cessation in respect of the loss-making operating unit will increase
the profitability of the Group as a whole which will enable
the Group to allocate its financial and operational resources
with improved efficiency to other profitable operating units.
Furthermore, the freed up resources arising from the cessation will
enable the Group to seek other profitable business opportunities
to further enhance the business operations, financial condition
and results of the Group.

The past year was a challenging year for the Group. For the
twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Group's turnover
amounted to approximately RMB69.6 million (2013: approximately
RMB63.1 million). In particular, approximately 91.3%,
approximately 3.4%, approximately 2.7% and approximately
2.6% of the turnover was derived from the PRC market, the
Taiwan market, the Hong Kong market and the Vietnam market
respectively. Although there is a growth in the Group's turnover,
due to the increase in one-off costs and marketing expenses along
with our business expansion, some of our newly added operation
bases have not yet brought profit contribution to us albeit they
are generating revenue for us. With these factors, coupled with
the rise in costs, loss attributable to shareholders for the Year
2014 was approximately RMB11.1 million (2013: approximately
RMB16.2 million).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHmE
Prospects

The crucial focus of our development will rest in large part on the
PRC, Hong Kong and Vietnam, which is exceptionally going to be
a stronghold for reaping huge revenue to the Group in the coming
year. We expect that the cemetery park project in Vietnam will
provide more than 4,000 burial tomb spaces and 1,000 niches,
which are anticipated to generate a revenue of approximately
RMB217.8 million for the Group upon the completion of sales of
all these spaces in full. The Group’s management will continue
to effectively raise our business goal in different areas to a new
high by adhering to its unique, professional business model. Our
management will keep close eyes on other regions blessed with
immense potential and myriad opportunities as well, so as to
extend our business reach.

In connection with the newly added operations bases in past
years, we expect that these bases are starting to reward us
with profit contribution in 2015 upon their investment period.
What is more, we will also strengthen cost control. Building
on the Group's strategically well-established layout of business
development, and backed by an abundant pool of funds, our
management is confident to bring long-term returns and create
substantial value for shareholders.

I would like to express heartfelt thanks to banks and investors for
their support and trust on behalf of the Board of Directors. | would
also like to take this opportunity to thank our management and
staff for their efforts over the past year and their contribution to
the Group'’s success in business operations.

Chairman
Liu Tien-Tsai

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Vianagement Discussion and AnalysiS

Business Review

The PRC

Funeral business in the PRC continues to be the driving force of
the Group's operations. The Group's turnover derived from funeral
business in the PRC market for the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately RMB63.5 million, representing an increase of
about 9.2% to the corresponding period last year and accounted
for about 91.3% of the Group’s turnover.

Hong Kong

The Group's funeral business in the Hong Kong market generated
an approximate turnover of RMB1.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 representing an increase of about 25.9% to the
corresponding period last year and accounted for approximately
2.7% of the Group's turnover.

Taiwan

The Group's turnover derived from funeral business in the Taiwan
market for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
RMB2.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
29.7% to the corresponding period last year and accounted for
approximately 3.4% of the Group's turnover.

Vietnam

The Group's turnover derived from the sales of burial plots in
Vietnam was approximately RMB1.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 and accounted for 2.6% of the Group’s turnover.

Prospects

The crucial focus of our development will rest in large part on the
PRC, Hong Kong and Vietnam, which is exceptionally going to be
a stronghold for reaping huge revenue to the Group in the coming
years. We expect that the cemetery park project in Vietnam will
provide more than 4,000 burial tomb spaces and 1,000 niches.
The Group’s management will continue to effectively raise our
business goal in different areas to a new high by adhering to its
unique, professional business model. Our management will keep
close eyes on other regions blessed with immense potential and
myriad opportunities as well, so as to extend our business reach.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial review

Turnover

The turnover arising from principal activities for the year ended
31 December 2014 was approximately RMB69.6 million (2013:
approximately RMB63.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately 10.4% as compared to 2013. Regarding to the
funeral services business provided in the PRC during the year, the
turnover was approximately RMB63.5 million (2013: approximately
RMB58.2 million), representing an increase of approximately
9.2% which accounted for 91.3% of the Group's turnover (2013:
92.2%). The turnover generated by the funeral services business
provided in Taiwan was approximately RMB2.4 million (2013:
approximately RMB3.4 million), or 3.4% of the Group's turnover,
representing a decrease of approximately 29.7%. The turnover
generated by the funeral services business provided in Hong Kong
was approximately RMB1.9 million (2013: approximately RMB1.5
million), or 2.7% of the Group's turnover, representing an increase
of approximately 25.9%. The turnover generated by sales of burial
plots in Vietnam was approximately RMB1.8 million, or 2.6% of
the Group's turnover.

The turnover from the funeral service provided in funeral parlour
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management
increased by 12.5%, amounting to approximately RMB47.8 million
(2013: approximately RMB42.5 million). The rise was mainly due
to the increase in the number of funeral services provided to 2,383
for 2014. Moreover, the average spending per service provided
increase to approximately RMB20,065 for 2014.

The turnover from the cremation services increased by
3.7%, amounting to approximately RMB12.5 million (2013:
approximately RMB12.1 million). The increase was due to
the increase in the average spending per service provided to
RMB1,411 for 2014. However, the number of cremation services
provided was dropped to 8,889 for 2014 due to the cessation of
management of the operation of Zhong County Funeral Parlour
(BEE™THBERZEE) ("ZCFP) in November 2014. Under the
funeral parlour management agreement and funeral service centre
management agreements, the Group is entitled to all income
and responsible for all liabilities and all expenses incurred in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The revenue generated from funeral arrangement services
provided in Taiwan and Hong Kong was approximately RMB2.4
million and RMB1.9 million respectively (2013: approximately
RMB3.4 million and RMB1.5 million), representing a decrease of
29.7% and an increase of 25.9% respectively over last year.

The revenue generated from cemetery services and sales of burial
plots was approximately RMB3.2 million (2013: approximately
RMB3.6 million) and RMB1.8 million (2013: RMBNil) respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit increase by 14.1% to approximately RMB53.8
million (2013: approximately RMB47.1 million), and gross profit
margin increased to approximately 77.2% (2013: approximately
74.6%). The gross profit margin of funeral services provided in
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management increased to approximately 80.6% (2013:
approximately 77.6%) which was mainly due to the increase in
the average spending per funeral service provided. The gross
profit margin of cremation services increased to approximately
86.5% (2013: approximately 85.4%) which was mainly due to the
increase in the average spending per service provided and that of
funeral arrangement services decreased to approximately 13.1%
(2013: approximately 18.5%) due to the decrease in the number
of services provided which raised the cost sharing for each service.
The gross profit margin of cemetery services and sales of burial
plots was approximately 75.4% (2013: approximately 80.5%) and
79.9% (2013: Nil%) respectively.

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly include (i)
direct labour for the funeral services provided by individuals during
the funeral ceremony held in a funeral parlour or a funeral service
centre managed by the Group; (ii) subcontracting charges for
services provided by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission
expenses from the recognition of commission paid to sales agents
for funeral services deeds at the point when the services of the
funeral services deeds are provided; and (iv) materials used for
funeral ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh flowers,
fuel for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods sold in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses slightly decreased by approximately 1.6% to
approximately RMB24.0 million (2013: approximately RMB24.4
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to net effect of
the Group's decreased rental and management costs due to
the cessation of the management of the operation of ZCFP. The
proportion of selling expenses to turnover was approximately
34.4% (2013: approximately 38.7%). Administrative expenses
maintained on same level of approximately RMB37.0 million
(2013: approximately RMB37.1 million) as a result of continuing
the efforts in cost control of staff cost, entertainment expenses
and rental expenses. The proportion of administrative expenses to
turnover was approximately 53.1% (2013: approximately 58.9%).
Finance costs remained nearly the same of approximately RMBO.4
million (2013: approximately RMBO0.3 million) because of raising
short-term loan during 2014. Income tax expense decreased by
approximately 28.2% to approximately RMB0.6 million (2013:
approximately RMBO0.8 million).

Loss for the Year

In 2014, loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year was approximately RMB11.1 million (2013: approximately
RMB16.2 million). The decrease in loss for the year ended 31
December 2014 was mainly due to the net effect of (i) increase
in the gross profit; (ii) increase in other revenue and decrease in
other net loss as there was an increase in consultancy income (iii)
increase in other operating expenses.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB109.1 million (2013: approximately RMB122.8
million) and bank and other loans of approximately RMB8.1
million (2013: approximately RMB9.0 million). All bank and other
loans were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars, at prevailing
market interest. During the year, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes. The gearing ratio
representing the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of the
Group was 2.8% as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 3.0%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

During the year, the Group’s major operations were geographically
based in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. The revenue
derived from Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam accounted for
approximately 8.7% (2013: approximately 7.8%) of the total
revenue. Its financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
while a significant portion of the revenue and expenses are
denominated in the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong
Kong Dollar and Vietnamese dong. It is possible that the value of
Renminbi may fluctuate in value against that of the United States
Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese
dong. The Group’s operating results and financial condition may
be affected by changes in the exchange rates of Renminbi against
the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar
and Vietnamese dong, in which the Group's revenue and expenses
are denominated. As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not
have any bank liabilities, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest and
exchange risks.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposal of
Investments

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have
any significant acquisition or disposal of investment.

The Number and Remuneration of
Employees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately 278
employees (2013: 328 employees). The Group determines staff
remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary scales,
individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options
are reviewed on regular basis.

Charge on Group Assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and bank
deposits pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings
and other loans were approximately RMB17.5 million and RMBNIl
million respectively (2013: RMB16.8 million and RMB3.7 million
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE RN
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2013: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, capital expenditure
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB4.1 million (2013: approximately RMB14.8
million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements
amounting to approximately RMB6.5 million (2013: approximately
RMB7.5 million).

Comparison of Business Objectives With
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in
the Prospectus with the Group's actual business progress for
the period from 9 September 2009 (the “Listing Date”) to 31
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December 2014 is set out below:

Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2014 as stated

in the Prospectus

DR T

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2014

BREEREALHHME
—ZE—MmE+ZA=+—H LR BE_Z—MNE+_-_A=+—HA
XGEHE BEREBRE
1. Expand funeral services network in other ~ The Group has implemented two memoranda of understanding

major cities by entering into funeral-
services agreement

BRI VRBRRBHE BALMEIE
AT RO TE R IR A A AR
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(the "MOU") disclosed in the “Future Plan and Prospects”
section of the Prospectus.

AEFBETHERER [RRFAEIRANE] —SABEBRNEFTR
e (R ERER]) -

The Group is in the process of negotiating the terms with the
owners of remaining funeral parlours and new funeral service
centres.

AREE EEERTEGEE MBERE T OEB AERBGER -

The Group has also signed two other new subcontracting
agreements during 2010.
ALER-FT-FENNEHEEMB SIS QHE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2014 as stated

in the Prospectus
BEEEMEALHEME
—Z—mME+_A=+—HIHEN
XBAR

B & M AT

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2014

BE—_Z—NMFE+ZA=+—HA
EREBRR

Develop business in columbarium in
Taiwan

BRAETNEER

Purchase of funeral service equipment
and facilities

BEAERGRE &G

Refurbishment of new and existing
service centres

KIEHEIERIRENRBF O

Expansion of marketing network

mRMSEE

As disclosed in the announcement by the Company on 5 January
2011, the register for the owner of the columbarium was
changed. At present, the new owner is still negotiating with Bau
Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (& 1L 4 & BRI 17
A &]) (“Bau Shan”), the direct subsidiary of the Company, as
to the continuance of the agency agreement to sell cubicles and
space for urn storage in the columbarium (the “Products”) in
Miaoli County in Taiwan or the sale of the columbarium (and the
Products) to Bau Shan.

WA RFTR =T ——F—ARBRBEZAGAESR  Bk&E
LHEBAREEEL BRI FHEBALRARREEMER
AIBLEGRERNHAERAR (B EN EEERTEE
REHBUEERBEERENENEULRERL ([ZEE
mlEEERE (RZEER) TEIL-

The Group is conducting the feasibility study on advanced
equipment and facilities designated for funeral.

AREBEEETTRBEEN R TERRERREH AT

The Group has finished the decoration and improvement of
funeral parlours and services centres under its managements.

AEBERBEBGZED TREERAEBEE LREF O -

The Group has finished the establishment of the website and
organised and sponsored a forum and research on the funeral
industry.

REE D TR Ml RMAABNER) — A MBEE T mIER
s
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BB wm &N

The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied in accordance
with the actual development of the market. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the net proceeds

RIEFHCH AW

from issuance of new shares of the Company had been applied as

follows:

Planned use of
proceeds

as stated in
the Prospectus

B ERMRES B R M EIB RS IR
TH LA &= B 70 A L4 A 22 A B 3 R 2R T S P
TEREMETAER - MAGFIENRIBEERT
BLERPB - NEMHRE _T—NF+ =
A=1— B8 KRR FTHBRD A

Actual use of
proceeds from

from the Listing the date of
Date to listing to
31 December 31 December
2014 2014
BREEFRR
LHAHE LIHAHE
—ZT—mE —ZT—mE
+=-—A=+—H +=-A=+—H
I8 EAE LHEERSA
TR &R I1E HFRSRE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEFIT AREFTT
Expand funeral services network BIBR] N B E RS ek
in other major cities by entering into BWAHAE ZWTH
funeral-services agreement EIR IS4 12,960 12,960
Develop business in columbarium BREEBREED
in Taiwan 11,560 -
Purchase of funeral service BERERGRERZE
equipment and facilities 28,600 10,147
Refurbishment of new and RIEHMEBERRAN
existing service centres ARG A0 21,266 21,266
Expansion of marketing network HIE 5 44 1,450 1,450

The Group had to renegotiate several terms and conditions with
the owners of the funeral parlours and new funeral service centres
under the MOUs and the owner of columbarium in Taiwan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the above reasons and certain expansion activities were
postponed, the net proceeds applied during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2014 are less than expected. The
Directors expect that most of the business objectives stated in the
Prospectus for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2014 will be revisited in the first half of 2015.

All the remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2014 have been
placed as interest bearing deposits in banks.

B & M AT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, except for Code Provision A.2.1.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The positions of Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") of the Company
are both currently carried on by Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai. The Board
considers that the Group's size is still relatively small and thus not
justified in separating the role of Chairman and CEO. The Group
has in place internal control system to perform the check and
balance function. The Board believes that having the same person
performing the roles of both Chairman and CEO does provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and that, operating
in this manner allows for more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2014.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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Board of Directors

A)

B)

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Mr. Kim Eun Back

Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh (Resigned on 1 September 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the Code
Provision, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While
all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company's business. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The biographical details
of the Directors and the relationship among the members
of the Board are set out in the "Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 28 to 31 of this annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing and
approving financial statements. The Directors, collectively
and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders, for the manner in which the affairs of the
Group are managed and operated. As and when necessary,
the Directors can access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group’s expense
to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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PRBEAWE

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated
to the management for the management and administration
functions of the Group, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management to
discharge its duties and responsibilities in all circumstances.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held four
meetings. The Directors can attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company'’s articles of association. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision
in advance of each board meeting. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings
held during the year:

EEeHRRTEEEAMATAEHE
BIERITHREEME S - 45 TIEWT AR
s-FRRSRERBEMEBRTA
EHER  RRNRRAREELRER
FHEIMAENASTREESTSH]
BEEEEHNH-EEFRBERAT EFE
EENXFRREEERITERELE
T-EFEHTHREHNZFR UE
RERLHFNTAAEENTE -

Exe-RESFHORIE BF
BT AT wRARANEEER-
BREW ZERYBEBREE-BE
—E-MEFZR=T—HIEFE E
FEHBTOREH -EFAHREIE
BARNBEEERARAETFZEMLE
FTRANTALFER EFEREFS
SRBTAIRGRINERELAEFREF
e TRBIBERHESTFALFEZ

B

Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) BRI E (£ 4/4
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh (Resigned on THRESEE

1 September 2014) (RZZE—mHFNA—HET) 3/3
Mr. Kim Eun Back TEETLE 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BFHITES
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BEEEE 4/4
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—REE 4/4
Mr. Lee Koon Hung E P 4/4

i
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There was one general meeting held on 21 May 2014 which
was the annual general meeting of the Company. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors
at the general meeting held:

AN
PHEEIRWMRE

RZZT—NFRA=+—HRIT—RK
RARE ZAGNARAZBRRBFK
g NREJIERNEE L FEARTZR
RRgZBER:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) RIRNET e & (F/) 171
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh (Resigned on THREEE

1 September 2014) (R=ZE—NFNA—AFHTE) 0/1
Mr. Kim Eun Back TEBLE 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors Y8 FHTESE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai EEEEE 11
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—RiE 0/1
Mr. Lee Koon Hung ESThS 171

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai is appointed as the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group's business. The Board considers that Mr. Liu
has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s business and can make
appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation
of the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is necessary.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 independent non-executive directors presenting
at least one-third of the Board with at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending
training course or reading relevant materials on the topics related

to corporate governance and regulations.

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

o Audit Committee

° Remuneration Committee

o Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms

of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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A) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in August 2009 which consists of three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2014, four meetings were
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

BRERE
FEALE

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports before submission
to the Board. The Audit Committee focused not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review
of the Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

i. making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor;

i. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

ii.  monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-yearly
report and, quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the auditors;
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B)

V. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) in August 2009 which
consists of three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2014, one meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

B—EE
FEHEE

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management;

i. determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management;

ii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and
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iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) in August 2009 which consists of
three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2014, one meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

RN e
B—grt

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the appointment of the Board members of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

i.  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

iii. assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

9]
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iv.  making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

V. making recommendations to the Board on the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members; and

vi. giving full consideration to the Board’s policy
concerning diversity of Board members adopted from
time to time.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

Under Code Provision A.4.1, all the non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present,
each of Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu, Mr. Chai Chung Wai and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung, the independent non-executive Directors have
been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
paid to the auditors, Crowe Horwarth (HK) CPA Limited in
respect of audit services and non-audit service assignment
amounted to approximately RMB1,032,000 (2013: approximately
RMB1,094,000) and approximately RMB167,000 (2013:
approximately RMBNil) respectively.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for the period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and on a going concern basis. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Having made appropriate
enquiries, the Board is not aware any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cost significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. It is the
auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditor’s report.

Internal Control

During the year, the Board complied with the Code Provision
on internal control. The Board is responsible for the Group's
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors. During the
year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

The Board also considered that there is adequate resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in the Group to monitor
the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions. The
Company will ensure such matters are under review by the Board
periodically and training programmes will be provided to the staff
whenever necessary to ensure their knowledge and experience are
adequate to discharge their duties.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting was appointed as Company Secretary. According
to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Mok have taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM(s)") shall also be convened on the requisition of two
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within three months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the "Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (quarterly
report, half-yearly reports and annual reports), and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be any
number of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings at the date of the requisition.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:—

Hotline no.: 2153 3231

By post: Workshop 13, 3/F,
Sun Ling Plaza,

30 On Kui Street,
Fanling, Hong Kong

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
the publication of annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com and meetings with investors and analysts.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (ZI#R) , aged 57, is the chairman of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also the
team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the Group's
establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in training its
team.

Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit Making Organisation
Management and Mortuary Science and Funeral Service
Management from Nanhua University ( % A2 ) in 2000
and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of managerial,
corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began his career in
funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a member of Japan
Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( B ANIBIE 4612 ) , the
National Funeral Director Association of the United States and the
FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council member of Society of Chinese
Funeral Education (R BIEZZE 2 € ) and Chinese Society
of Life and Death Studies ( FZEAFLZ & ) . Mr. Liu had also been
a lecturer holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial
master and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (SBRFZMBREEEHEEHEH ) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (R B ZEH# € ) in the PRC. Mr. Liu has not served
in any other public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3
years.
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Mr. Kim Eun Back (& ®1#), aged 48, is an executive Director
of the Company appointed on 16 February 2009. Mr. Kim joined
the Group in July 1999. Mr. Kim has over 10 years of experience
in the industry of funeral services since he joined Bau Shan in
1999. He is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development in Vietnam, in particular
overseeing the daily operations in Vietnam, monitoring and over-
seeing the implementation of funeral services, the improvement
of the services and public relation affairs of the Group. Mr.
Kim graduated from the Department of Political Science of the
National Chengchi University (Bl 37 Ba K2 ) in June 1989,
obtained a master degree from the Department of Public Affairs
of the Yonsei University (£t X&), Korea in February 1993
and obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua
University, Taiwan in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kim had
working experience in companies that provide funeral services.
He has accumulated experience in the funeral services industry
which is beneficial to the Group. Mr. Kim has not served in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3 years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BB ), aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group in
February 2009 and was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master
degree of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004
and of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of Ping
Shan Tea Group Limited (formerly known as “Huafeng Group
Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 364), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from 6 August 2009 to 30 September 2013. Mr.
Chai has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years.
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Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (2 — &), aged 70, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Ching obtained
the degree of bachelor of Science in Aerospace Engineering from
the University of Kansas in 1967, and the master of business
administration degree from the University of Toronto in 1976. He
is the director of Caneast Group (Canada) Inc. and also a fellow
of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Ching has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years.

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (ZEE#t), aged 52, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company appointed on 30
September 2012. Mr. Lee obtained a higher diploma from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”). Mr. Lee is presently the director of Long Rich
Investment Consultants Limited. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in investment. Mr. Lee is presently a member of the North District
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lee is also the chairman of Sha
Tau Kok District Rural Committee, N.T., the Ex-officio Executive
Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk N.T. and Village Indigenous
Inhabitant Representative of Wu Kau Tang of Sha Tau Kok District
Rural Committee, N.T.. Mr. Lee is also the honorary president of
Border District Junior Police Call of Hong Kong, a member of the
school management committee of New Territories Heung Yee
Kuk Tai Po District Secondary School and a member of the school
management committee of Sha Tau Kok Central Primary School.
Mr. Lee has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years.

Senior Management

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (3R&Z 8 ), aged 49, graduated from the
National Sun Yat-sen University (Bl 1L K2) | Taiwan with
a master degree of Executive MBA program in 2012 and joined
the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head Management
Office. Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate of IPMA
Level D, Certificated Project Management Associate issued by
Taiwan Project Management Association in 2009. As head of
the Department Head of Head Management Office, Ms. Chang
is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s objectives
and business development, in particular overseeing of personnel,
business analysis and internal audit function of the Group. Ms.
Chang is also the team head of the internal compliance team. She
also has over 8 years of experience in management in respect of
the business and operation in funeral industry.
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Mr. Shih Chih Jen (B {Z), aged 45, joined the Group in
July 2010 as the deputy general manager of the Group’s Hong
Kong division and has been appointed as the general manager
of Chongging Xibao Funeral Technology Company Limited ( & &
HEREERIEBER AT (“Chongging Xibao”) and Chongging
Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited ( & & 5 /8 7 28 IR 75
BBRARA]) ("Chongging Xizhou") since 2013. He obtained the
certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua University ( {5 %
KE), Taiwan in September 2002 and also was employed by
Continuing Education Center, Ling Tung College (48 5 # i £
HEIEBHEH A F L) as the lecturer of Funeral service in 2002.
As the general manager of Chongging Xibao and Chongging
Xizhou, Mr. Shih is responsible for the sales, marketing and overall
business development of all funeral parlours and funeral service
centres in the PRC. Mr. Shih has over 13 years of management
experience in the funeral services industry and acquired the
requisite management capability to manage the funeral services
business of the Group to its benefit.

Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying ({&% &), aged 36, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University (#2{5KX2 ) with a bachelor degree of
Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001 as
an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying has since served
the Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan has a
thorough knowledge and understanding of the Group's business
and operations, and has developed a high level of proficiency and
management ability with respect to her work with the Group.
As head of the funeral services deed department, Ms. Pan is
responsible for marketing and attaining the sale of funeral services
deeds. Ms. Pan has over 10 years of experience in management in
respect of the Group's business and operation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting (R#EE) , aged 38, has served as the financial
controller and company secretary of the Company since March
2008. Mr. Mok is responsible for the Company’s financial and
treasury management. Mr. Mok is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Mok graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999 with the degree of bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and further obtained two master
degrees of Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2006 and of Law in China Business Law from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2009. He has over 15 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Board is here to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014,

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 192.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Use of Proceeds From the Company’s Initial
Public Offering

The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares at the
time of its listing on the GEM of Stock Exchange in September
2009, after deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted
to approximately RMB82.3 million. These proceeds will be fully
applied in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the Prospectus, as follows:

approximately RMB28.6 million for the expansion of funeral
services in the PRC;

- approximately RMB5.6 million for the refurbishment of
existing funeral parlours and funeral service centres under

the Group’s management in the PRC;

- approximately RMB28.6 million for the purchase of funeral
service equipment and facilities;

- approximately RMB1.5 million for the expansion of its
marketing network in the PRC;
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- approximately RMB11.6 million for the development of
columbarium business in Taiwan, and;

- approximately RMB6.4 million for general working capital of
the Group.

All the remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2014 have been
placed as interest bearing deposits in banks.

Summary of Financial Information
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Year ended 31 December

B8E+-A=+-HLFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
~Z-mE -—T-=f —T-—-§ ZT——F% ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARSTr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Turnover EEE 69,648 63,106 61,767 72,521 67,600
Gross profit £ 53,796 47,131 46,288 45,564 50,363
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiA (B8) /& F (10,987) (15,966) (28,565) (27,947) 5,355
(Loss)profit attributable to UNGE 2PN A
owners of the Company (B#8),/ &7 (11,142) (16,175) (29,487) (30,079) 1,105
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB cents) SREA (E18) /&7
(AR%BS) (1.50) (2.18) (3.97) (4.05) 0.16
As at 31 December
®+=R=+-8H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
~Z-mE -—T-=f 2% <"E-——-F% <"T-IZF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARSTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE 49,013 65,433 63,403 57,027 53,495
Current assets nmEEE 234,082 236,955 282,592 315,135 367,006
Current liabilities TELR=NE 100,839 107,459 126,141 125,207 133,778
Net assets HEE 174,757 186,620 210,294 236,892 273,374
Major Customers and Suppliers FEERRMER

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of funeral
services, none of its customers accounted for more than 1% of
its total turnover during the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 28.8% of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to0 9.1%.

ZK’*II%%E%T CERBERYS  RFER - &
HEFEBEAEEAZEXEN1% - AARE
BAAHERFHNBEEFRABERN
288% MAHEPHEAHEHFELNBERENL
9.1% °
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any material beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

Segment Reporting

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Property

Details of movements in investment property of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB119.3
million.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to approximately RMB100,000 (2013: approximately
RMB63,000).
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Mr. Kim Eun Back

Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh (Resigned on 1 September 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

According to the requirements of Article 16.18 of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and Mr.
Ching Clement Yat-biu will retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 28 to 31 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Agreement

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and
Mr. Kim Eun Back has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 9
September 2009 and 9 September 2009 respectively, which
continues thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.
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Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ching Clement Yat-biu and Mr. Chai Chung Wai, have re-entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 9 September 2012 to 8 September 2015, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice
in writing to the other party.

One independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Koon Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 30 September 2012 to 29
September 2015, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five
Individuals With Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five individuals

with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2014, the relevant interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO")),
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of SFO) or required
pursuant to section 352 of SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or required, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

Directors’ Report
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EERFLFIRNEMAHEBEEZ
ﬂgg RO RAHEZERR

RZE—MFE+=—A=+—1" E%i?%ﬁ
BABRARQRISEEEEE (E&RFE?
&% 515 ([BEHREBAEE]) (F571F)

FEXVER) z Bty (TR D)) - FHE IR 1 R &
BREEIRIEE SR BAE GG FEXVEBETRS
“*Mﬂ@$ A) S B S B 2 AR B R s Nk
E(BREREZHFLBEKRIBEIEES
WEESERAER 2 ERIOXE)  ER
EE A KBS G0 ZE35265) ARZ &0 ATE
ZERMzEEER AR N ERERIE
R ETH R BIE5.461525.6715 8 BE ST
BERHZMTENG AR T M2 HE
B RABWT

R 2 iF R AR

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held the Company

LELH

ERTEREH

EsElR EaMH Fr¥sR& 7 8 B L Eol=R2 4

Liu Tien-Tsai Personal 308,184,000 41.51%
21781 A
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of SFO showed that as at 31 December
2014, the Company was notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company. These interests were in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the Directors and chief executive:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

FEREREREKGRAMAEGZE
DRRE

BIEE SN EIEHIEEXVEEI36IEBFE
ZEERRELMER RZFT—HF+=
A=+—H AQRENE TR ARRF
BEITIRAS% R E ST EER R -ZE
B ENEEEEEERESTHRAR
ZRESEAON Z K

R 2 BB 2R
Approximate

percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name of shareholders Nature of interest shares held the Company
GFELTF
ERITERED
R BEaHH FrisBR BB @#rhaEskt
Yang Yong Sheng (note 1) Personal 36,632,000 4.93%
oA () fEA
Family interest 5,152,000 0.69%
ENIY
Yu Wen Ping (note 1) Personal 5,152,000 0.69%
T5F (KiEE) EA
Family interest 36,632,000 4.93%
N3

Note:

1. Yu Wen Ping, the spouse of Yang Yong Sheng, was deemed to be
interested in all the interest of Yang Yong Sheng and vice versa.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares Or
Debentures

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
Trademark Licence Agreement

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered into the Trademark
Licence Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu
Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark Agreement,
Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an exclusive basis
a licence to use a number of trademarks and service marks
in connection with the Group’s funeral services business at a
consideration of HK$1,000 per year.

Signing of Deed of Trust

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was
entered into between Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd
(BLEmREERRM AR AR (“Bau Shan”) , a subsidiary of the
Company and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li”) (288 ) , spouse of Mr.
Liu, in relation to the land property situated in Taiwan at No. 943
in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township, Kaohsiung County (/=%
S RINEBIINER94315% ) (the “Niao Song Property”). Under the
Niao Song Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be registered under the name
of and held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she
shall act in the interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 March
2013, a renewal of Niao Song Deed was entered into for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
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The Group entered into a trust arrangement instead of transferring
the Niao Song Property to the Group because, as advised by the
Taiwan legal adviser to the Group, the Niao Song Property is a
piece of agricultural land and the Law of Agriculture Development
of Taiwan does not allow Bau Shan being a private corporate
body, to be registered as an owner of a piece of agricultural land.
Therefore, the Niao Song Property is held on trust by Ms. Li for
Bau Shan. The Taiwan legal adviser to the Group has advised that
the Niao Song Deed complies with the Trust Act and other relevant
laws and regulations in Taiwan.

.|I|n

Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to Chongqing
Xibao by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing the licensee,
Chongqging Xibao, a subsidiary of the Company, to lawfully
use the property situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the
“Licensed Property”) as the registered office without the payment
of rent or licence fee. The signed confirmation from Mr. Liu
authorizing Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property as its
registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal use, rental and
mortgage of the Licensed Property. There was no revenue or profit
contributed by the Licensed Property during the year as there had
been no occupancy of the Licenced Property during the year.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu will last until 30
January 2052.

All the transactions fall within Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing
Rules and each constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. All the related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

During the year, the Directors were not aware of any business or
interest of the Directors or any substantial shareholder (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
parties. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2014.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(a

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the
Group holds an equity interest, including any executive
directors and any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; and (ii) any
consultants, advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture
partners of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share Option
Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date of the particular option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
("General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing 10% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the year end date.
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Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any participants in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at
the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant concerned in
respect of all shares which are offered to such participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the eligible participant, together with
a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$10 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company, within such time as may be
specified in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should not
exceed 5 years from the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in the
circumstances by giving notice in writing to the Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number
of shares in respect of which it is so exercised. Each
such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable
remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
shares in respect of which the notice is given.
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.mn

Details of the share options granted and remaining outstanding as =%

—mE+ - A=+—HERHEHAK

at 31 December 2014 are as follows: Tl 2 BRI IR T
Number of share options
HRERE
Exercise At At
Name/category price 1 January 31 December
of participants Date of grant per share Exercisable period 2014 Lapsed 2014
B® 3
=14 —2-mE —Z-mE
SHENE /B BHAH fTER® fTESR —-A—H 2%% +-RA=+-H
Directors of the Company
FAFEE
Mr. Kim Eun Back 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
15 January 2017
SEBREE ZE-ZF-A1RA 06077 I A GES
“Z—t5-A+hA
Directors of subsidiaries
HELRES
Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
ERBLL Z2-ZF-R+RH 0.60%7T Z2-ZF-Rt+RHE
I il =
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
REFLL ZR-—E-BTRH 0601  —T-=F-A+XHE
ZZ—+E5-AthA
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 10,172,000 (1,152,000) 9,020,000
employees 11 February 2020
EHEMER I 18787 “Z-TF\Rt+-HE
ZZ-ZF_RT+-H
16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 6,480,000 (1,560,000) 4,920,000
15 January 2017
“E2-—E-R+KH 0608T  —E-ZF-AtRHE
“Z—t5-AtHA
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 41,900,000 - 41,900,000
11 February 2020
Br “E-TF-At+-H 18T “E-ZF\Rt+-HE
“Z-ZE-A1-H
62,552,000 (2,712,000) 59,840,000
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The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten years
from the date of grant. As at 31 December 2014, 1,420,000 of
50,920,000 options (2013: 2,572,000 of 52,072,000 options)
were exercisable in the same year of the date of grant with 50%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and at
the end of the year from the date of grant and 49,500,000 of
50,920,000 options (2013: 49,500,000 of 52,072,000 options)
are exercisable over five years from the date of grant, with 20%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and first
calendar date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire five years from the
date of grant and will be exercisable after one year from the date
of grant. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates have been granted share
options under the Share Option Scheme.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

Save and except the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 as
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
had, during the year, complied with the Code Provision.

The Group’s compliance with the code provisions is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 16 to 27 of this annual
report.
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Auditors

.|I|n

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report

Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO-LIFE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-
Life Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 49 to 192, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

8\ A% BRI R

EEEE (8 SRS BERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

& INRE SIEETTR BiEh 09
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor's Report

B 2B EN RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2015

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P0O5049
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and - Other Comprenensive Income

. N
meEEmMEMEERE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ —ZE—WMF+_A=+—RHILFE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TRT AREF T
Turnover = £ 4(a) 69,648 63,106
Cost of sales &R (15,852) (15,975)
Gross profit £ 53,796 47,131
Valuation gain KEME 2 HEWKE
on investment property 17 765 -
Other revenue H AWz 5 3,755 1,628
Other net loss H a5 (1,217) (1,856)
Selling expenses HERX (24,009) (24,402)
Administrative expenses THBR X (36,970) (37,074)
Other operating expenses EMgEms (6,693) (1,047)
Loss from operations BERE (10,573) (15,620)
Finance costs BhE KA 6(a) (414) (346)
Loss before taxation BRIRAIEIR 6 (10,987) (15,966)
Income tax PrAS %t 7 (609) (848)
Loss for the year FEBE (11,596) (16,814)
Other comprehensive FERMZE
income/(loss) for the year ke, (§i8)
ltem that will not be reclassified to T & EFHBEIBEFH
profit or loss: HA
Surplus on revaluation of FIEERIHmEEFZ
land and buildings held B AR
for own use 1,385 416
ltems that may be reclassified HgngesmoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BmMIEE -
Exchange differences on BMERE AR
translation of financial Y357 INZE T
statements of operations (MIEPRIER]) 2
outside the People’s Republic of BRI 2
China (“non-PRC operations”) EREE (1,611) (6,623)
Reclassification adjustments BRFTFALEZ
relating to non-PRC operations FEFBIER
disposed of during the year BHOEAR (42) -
(1,653) (6,623)
Other comprehensive loss for FEH M2 EER
the year, net of income tax (HMBRFTIRI) 10 (268) (6,207)
Total comprehensive loss for FEZAEGIRESR
the year, net of income tax (HMBRFRFH) (11,864) (23,021)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprenensive Income
‘e B M AR E I S

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2014 2013
—F—mF =F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5% AR®TT ARET T
Loss attributable to: BTALREEEER:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ PN 12 (11,142) (16,175)
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR IS (454) (639)
(11,596) (16,814)
Total comprehensive loss BTFALREWE
attributable to: 2EEGIREE:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZF =N (11,504) (22,256)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR S (360) (765)
(11,864) (23,021)
Loss per share BRIBGR 12
Basic and diluted HAR#5E RMB(1.50) cents  RMB(2.18) cents

AR#(1.50)% AREE(2.18)5

The notes on pages 58 to 192 form part of these consolidated Z558B £192B Wik AZEM B mEKk 24
financial statements. BE 5 e

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra IR

As at 31 December 2014 R=—ZE—WNF+ -8 =+—H

2014 2013
—Z—mE —ET—=%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®TRT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M 15 38,265 57,978
Investment property REME 17 4,375 -
Prepaid lease payments TERTEE R K 16 3,671 3,753
Intangible assets mEE 18 2 2
Deposits for hire of funeral HABEEERBEERS
parlours and funeral FLZiRE
services centres 22 2,700 3,700
49,013 65,433
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Financial assets designated as EERE AT A ABRE
at fair value through ZUBEE
profit or loss 19 45,917 40,558
Development and formation costs 5% & ik 375k 7K 20 14,860 6,525
Inventories rE 21 803 637
Tax recoverable Al U e £ 18 28(a) 8 40
Trade and other receivables g5 K E A e U sh 18 22 63,326 66,293
Prepaid lease payments TERTEE R K 16 82 82
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 23 109,086 122,820
234,082 236,955
CURRENT LIABILITIES nERE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b S 5RI8 24 8,196 9,143
Receipts in advance TEU IR 25 90,590 95,820
Current portion of bank RITIEE 2B S
borrowings 26 594 602
Current portion of other loan E M E R BERE 27 - 106
Current taxation BIEATL 18 28(a) 1,459 1,788
(100,839) (107,459)
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEERE 133,243 129,496
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE WAL R

As at 31 December 2014 R =—_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—F—mF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P 5 AER®TxX ARETIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 182,256 194,929
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Receipts in advance TEM FRIE 25 39 -
Bank borrowings |ITIEE 26 7,460 8,309
(7,499) (8,309)
NET ASSETS HESE 174,757 186,620
EQUITY g2
Equity attributable to EAFHBEARGER
owners of the Company
Share capital A% AR 69,218 69,218
Reserves s 103,615 115,118
172,833 184,336
Non-controlling interests JERRER 1,924 2,284
TOTAL EQUITY HataE 174,757 186,620

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

March 2015.

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman
gIiRH
*E

The notes on pages 58 to 192 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

RIS AR LR

As at 31 December 2014 R =ZE—WF+=-HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E—WmE —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥TT ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M 15 1,918 2,549
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 39 93,302 90,985
Intangible assets mIEAE 18 2 2
95,222 93,536
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Other receivables H b e W I8 22 77,815 74,699
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 23 14,566 30,102
92,381 104,801
CURRENT LIABILITIES mBRE
Other payables H fth fE A 50 IB 24 19,854 28,454
Financial guarantee obligations MBRERREML 38 = 1,951
(19,854) (30,405)
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 72,527 74,396
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 167,749 167,932
EQUITY ga
Share capital fi&% AR 29 69,218 69,218
Reserves e 30(a) 98,531 98,714
TOTAL EQUITY RaNed 167,749 167,932

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

March 2015.

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman

BFH
1

The notes on pages 58 to 192 form part of these financial

statements.

HEFEN T AF=-A-THBEHLER
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Kim Eun Back
Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

==
* / \ Inl:lln

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—F

\\/T\

EHR

Equity

—MOFE+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FATRAARE

Foreign

Statutory  Properties currency  Share-based Non-

Share Share Merger  Statutory surplus  revaluation  translation compensation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
PLTE)
ERRR WRER SRER  ERZER
23 RABR  AHEE  EERR (1 |1 11 B RiER .1 0 RaHE
RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARMTR ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-F-=%-A-B 69218 220,633 (16,261) 25 1,550 1,067 (12,038 7720 (65,979) 206,135 4159 210,294
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (16,175) (16,175) (639) (16814)
Surplus on revaluation of land and buldings ~ FEEA T REFZ
eld for own use E - - - - - 416 - - - 416 - 416
Exchange diferences on BEFREREL
transation of financial tatements of HHRER ENZE
non-PRC operations - - - - - - (6,497) - - (6,497) (126) (6,623)
Other comprehensive income/{oss) E2Ekis/ (Bi) - - - - - 416 (6,497) - - (6,081) (126) (6,207)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Equity-settled share-based transactions

Lapse of share options granted

Capital contributions received by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary from non-controlling
interests

Decrease in non-controlling interests arising on -~ 54/ & —

disposal of interests in a non-wholly owned

subsidiary (note 33) & ( MTBB,‘ - - - - - - - - - - (263) (263)
Disposal of revalued property HESHNE - - - - - (295) - - 29 - - -
Acquisition of additional interestsnanon- B2 AMBATZ

wholly owned subsidiary (note 39(c) EINER (H390) - - - - - - - - 55 5 (1,147) (1,09)
At 31 December 2013 RZ%-Z&+ZR=+-R 69218 220,633 (16,261) 25 1,550 1,188 (18,535 8,004 (81,686) 184,336 2,284 186,620
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-A-A 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 05 1,550 1,188 (18,535) 8,004 (81,686) 184,336 2,284 186,620
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (11.142) (1,142 (454) (11,5%)
Surplus on revaluation of and and BiEEATHRET,

buldings held for own use B4 - - - - - 1385 - - - 1,385 - 1,385
Exchange differences on translation of financial %8 R E£ R 2

statements of non-PRC operations BRAREZERER - - - - - - (1,705) - - (1,705) 9% (1611)
Reclassification adjustments relating to BEENHEFRAEB

non-PRC operations disposed of ENHREE

during the year - - - - - - 42) - - ®) - 42)
Other comprehensive income/{oss) B2k (5i) - - - - - 1385 (1,747) - - (362) 94 (268)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - 1385 (1,747) - (11,142) (11,504) (360) (11,864)

Equity-settled share-based transactions NEREERNARRZRS - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
Lapse of share options granted BRHERERN - - - - - - - (193) 193 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve E - - - 561 - - - - (561) - - -
At 31 December 2014 Z3-BE+ZAET-A 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 86 1,550 2513 (20,282) 7812 (93,19) 172,833 1924 174751

The notes on pages 58 to 192 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b= ATH 4

Ny
/1L

SR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—@mE —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®TT AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEER
Loss before taxation R AR A E 18 (10,987) (15,966)
Adjustments for: FEEESE
Amortisation of prepaid TET & R 8
lease payments 6(c) 82 82
Impairment loss on other H At & W R IR E
receivables &8 6(c) = 486
Reversal of impairment loss O Ho At FE W IR 2
on other receivables BEEE 5 - (407)
Finance costs A& AR 6(a) 414 346
Deficit/(surplus) on FIEER 2t R
revaluation of land and BFEH
buildings held for own use E&t (B) 5 420 (476)
Valuation gain on investment KEME 2 HERE
property 17 (765) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment HE2EE 5 275 5,426
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEKBARZEE
subsidiaries (M=) 5 796 (604)
Depreciation e 6(c) 5,229 5,937
Loss on derecognition of BB EEC EiE
assets 6(c) 6,316 -
Interest income FBEHA 5 (1,455) (1,405)
Net realised and unrealised BT AEATFERTA
gain on financial assets B WBEE
designated as at fair value BEERRARER
through profit or loss U #5558 5 (236) (2,386)
Net gain on foreign SN SR ER S 4V
exchange forward W F 58
contracts 5 - (1,002)
Net exchange (gain)/loss HNE (Wz) BB
FEE 5 (3) 1,460
Equity-settled share-based N S E R A
payment expenses BRI AX 6(b)&(c) 1 402
11,074 7,859
87 (8,107)
CHANGES IN WORKING EERSED
CAPITAL
(Increase)/decrease in FE (#Em),md
inventories (435) 359
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 & Ho b fE W5k IE
other receivables A (1) 1,712 (11,363)
(Increase)/decrease in financial BT AEBEAFETA
assets designated as at fair Bz WBEE
value through profit or loss (1) (6,245) 2,001
Decrease in deposits for hire of HABEERBERE
funeral parlours and funeral R iR
services centres 1,000 -
Increase in development and F 2% I AR ST A AR 38 N
formation costs 917) (4,002)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & E A A SRR
payables (947) (438)
Decrease in receipts in advance TE g SR IE R (2,409) (3,007)
(8,241) (16,450)

TELEBEERRLE T -EFFR

55



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\/\E/Eui//w ?E

For the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—ZF—WNF+-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—MmE T —=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR®TT ARBFT
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS BEFRARE (8,154) (24,557)
Income tax paid ERFTEH
The People’s Republic of FE AR
China (“PRC") (TeEl) (1,147) (6)
Income taxes refunded 2R B EN
Taiwan =¥ 32 383
PRC el 210 -
(905) 377
NET CASH USED BEXRGRABRSERH
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (9,059) (24,180)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRED
Payment for the purchase MU EED - HE K&
of property, plant and B IANE
equipment (4,103) (14,846)
Proceeds from disposal HEME - BEREHEZ
of property, plant and PR3 18
equipment 190 3,048
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of LENE AR (F0k
cash disposed of FritEzEE) 33 (613) 1,025
Proceeds from termination RIS RIEEE 2
of operation of a funeral PS5 I8
parlour 6(c)(i) 2,324 -
Decrease in pledged bank EERRITEFR D
deposits - 17,869
Interest received EHE 1,455 1,405
NET CASH (USED IN)/ BREH (FA) &
GENERATED FROM Re&Rd
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (747) 8,501
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il EE
Proceeds from new bank MERITIBEE 2 TS KIE
borrowings 91,717 34,563
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (92,321) (45,073)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE (412) (330)
Repayment of other loan EBEEMER (106) (206)
Interest on other loan HMERFE (2) (16)
Payment for acquisition of WHE—RIEE BN B
additional interests in a DAz FEIME S
non-wholly-owned subsidiary pANE:N 39(0) - (1,092)
Capital contributions received FEEMBATE
by a non-wholly-owned FEVE AR HE 2 L ER
subsidiary from Z A
non-controlling interests - 300
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

;\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

eReREXR

—E-WEFT-A=+—HLHFE

2014 2013
—E—NEF —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥TT ARETF T
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING mEEZEIFFAR &S
ACTIVITIES (1,124) (11,854)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBeEEMRDBHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (10,930) (27,533)
CASH AND CASH W—B—HBZR&R
EQUIVALENTS AT ReEEED
1 JANUARY 122,820 159,729
EFFECT OF FOREIGN IEEFEH oY
EXCHANGE RATES CHANGES (2,804) (9,376)
CASH AND CASH »+=B=+—HZ
EQUIVALENTS AT BeRBAEEED
31 DECEMBER 109,086 122,820
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES HeRBEEEYD
OF CASH AND CASH b3k
EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITNRFHEIERES 23 109,086 122,820
The notes on pages 58 to 192 form part of these consolidated £Z558E =19 ZEZW HRAZEGEMBmE

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 AR P o

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. Its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the provision
of funeral and related services, sale of burial plots and
provision of cemetery maintenance services. The Company
and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred to as the
“Group”. The address of the Company's registered office
and principal place of business are the Grand Pavilion
Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road,
P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands
and Workshop 13, 3/F, Sun Ling Plaza, 30 On Kui Street,
Fanling, Hong Kong respectively.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014

1.

—&EH

PEEBEEGRAR ([ARF])R
BREHEAFEAN_TTRF_A
— MR ERSESEMKL A —RE
HEAREERR HEOR-_FTAN
FAANBERBBAERZMERAT
([ Al ) Bl ZEAR (TRIZAR]) B
HEBEERTT RBIRT K& -

ARalFENEREER - HMB AR
TEXBRAIRHBEERMBBRS HE
S NIRHEERRERS - A RARHE
WBRARR TXHBEA [ RNEE] - AR
A RE R e R B B i
Bl &Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O.
Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208,
Cayman lIslands & % & 1) 88 & /& 13055
HEFRNIEIZE



(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

2. FESHEEK

(@)

B
ZEMHHRRORBE B
R ([BEETHRE])EAZ
PrAEME BT B mEER (1F
BMBHREER]) SHBEM
BERZ B8R &R MRS %
A-ZAGER([FEGTE
Al EREREEARERA
MiER - AP HEHERRNTEEE
R EHERBE R &R TE - ARIBEHT
R & B QARG ($£622F) K
R 762875 % B8 15 B 2978
[8R B MEER] 2 @R EMRE %
B A BFERAE LR EE
AR TR EDSE S 2B R
(FRE)ZHRE-%ZFHBHHRE
TRB TR PTBIRIRE S E AR
Al (T8IZR EMARAN]) Z@AHE
B - AEEMRAZ TR RS
R EHIIIT o

BAGHMAGER/ME THA]
KAMERT BB BIREER (RA
SERARARZAGHEER
EME A RTFEM) - M 3R M
BRERLF#ET REERTER
2B @t BR ZEME
ZER AR % F R R
RITRBEE MR EAEEN
EBR-
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The functional currencies of its subsidiaries
are Renminbi ("RMB"), New Taiwan dollars (“NTD"),
US$, Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Vietnamese
dong ("VND") for subsidiaries incorporated/established
in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC"),
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam respectively. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated, which is different from the
functional currency of the Company as majority of the
Group'’s transactions are denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- investment property (see note 2(d));

- freehold land and buildings (see note 2(e)) and;

- financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 2(g));
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H K (#8)
(Continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ SN
B 75z I 5t
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K (1)
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) wmHEBBEHRTR2ELE (F)

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 41.

RAETABBMBRELER 28
BR BSRE R EAIEL FIE - 5
it MR R FHIE - EE R RR
SRERRERAANAEHRZE
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EEt RRRABRRDENBEL R
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At R ERR IR EEER
B e FTE R BIERT AT 2 8
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A R AR SREARE - B IMERT AR 2R
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EIRENERE B RS %R
FrEE M M BREREERTE
ZHE AT T T EBR
Vi NEZA R R

TELEBEERRLE T -EFFR

61



i

62

Notes to the Financial Statements
B #sha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i at

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILtFE

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
or loss of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F
2.

B 7

BRIt

—mOE+ZA=t—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H K (#8)
(Continued)

(9

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(l)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 2(f)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment property is stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value, unless they are still in
the course of construction or development at the end
of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment property
is accounted for as described in note 2(q)(v).

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 2(f)), and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
2(f).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The freehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed by qualified valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
of these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(1)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

(e)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

freehold land is not depreciated,;

buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 2 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the properties revaluation reserve
to accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for their intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

(e)
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BT 75 R R M 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZEZ T —NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ES:B%E ()

(Continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(1)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(d));
and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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FERARR ()

(Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and the building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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(g) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL"), “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K (1)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 B IE (&)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the “other net gain/(loss)” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in note 19.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K (1)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 B IE (&)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

74

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and other loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 B IE (&)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are trademarks and licenses that
are acquired separately and with finite useful lives
ranging from five to ten years and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(l)). Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(i)

)

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site which
will be completed for sale and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
2(s)). Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the burial plots.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(i)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(k)

0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Impairment of assets

() Impairment of other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K ()
(Continued)

(I)  Impairment of assets (Continued) () EBEREE)
(i)  Impairment of other receivables (Continued) () BMENKHEZHEHE (&)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss WHEB N ABEBE - BiR
is determined and recognised as follows: TXFritz FRE T RIEDR
FREEE :
For trade receivables and other receivables — BEREBSERERKEEHE
and other financial assets carried at b, JFE W SRTE R 15 5

amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (that is the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment of other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables and other receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- deposits; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ 20
B 15 R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE L —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TES:H %K (1)

(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EEREE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) EBEERE (&)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s A IR AT B RS - RilfE
recoverable amount is estimated. FTEER B EEE -

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
e EadiN s
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) BEERE (&)
-~ Reversals of impairment losses — REEBEZEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has WM AEEE AT E &
been a favourable change in the estimates BMeMELREEMY
used to determine the recoverable P BRARESERE
amount. @O -
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited BEREEENAT
to the asset’s carrying amount that would FEWARERBES
have been determined had no impairment EMETMEEZR
loss been recognised in prior years. E{E AR o FTHEE 2R
Reversals of impairment losses are credited BEEETRRED 2
to profit or loss in the year in which the FEFTABZEA -
reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) HEERERAE
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is RIEEIZER EmRA RE&
required to prepare an interim financial report E/RERE BT EAE34
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial SR HE GRS B=EA
Reporting, every three months. At the end of REP B WRE - R
the interim period, the Group applies the same AR - 2N & B e A B2 A B
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal B E AR 2 REAIE
criteria as it would at the end of the financial R A ERAE (5 HEE2()
year (see notes 2(I)(i) and (i)). (MR (i)) e

(m) Employee benefits (m) EERA

(i) Short-term employee benefits and (i) EHESEFARREMERR
contributions to defined contribution hat &l 1
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, e FE&HL - AHFF
contributions to defined contribution retirement R REHBURIKE S 2 #
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits RN GEE KRN ARE B
are accrued in the year in which the associated RHEEERBHNFTFEANR
services are rendered by employees. Where oA ENRSLEER
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect ERBANTE AZEHR
would be material, these amounts are stated at HEBREY K-

their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(n) Share-based payments

(i)

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly
to accumulated losses).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 15

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

s MRt

—OE+ZA=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Share-based payments (Continued)

(i) Share options granted to consultants
Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services, unless
the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

(o)

A%t (&)

BT RLEAROPISMERIN  FTH
BEXEHRBABEMNABETEHRIEE
E (RRNR AT RS BE M A %
EFETR I & B R B0 R R E R
B ) @ HER o AT HER B A
BINERERMETELEREAE
P H) R R B RR Bt M) B 1 (R ¢ [
BRFENERHERSZEMmE
EHHER  EE LM E RMNA
BE—-HERENR —ERRE
BAW URHBAEARNERER
BT R AR — SR E R A
BEMEEVMABEAFEZ K
[7) A1 53 4% 58 1) BA R O 8 ) © AR
EERFENERRERERE
BRAXFERAARNBRIEES
BAEEMMEENEERREE
B e AR 2R BIERE
B B[R — B B R — R
ERAMW ANREEEMEENE
PR AR N PR 750 TR U85 4 B R 1 [ 9
A —HiEAEm -

BRELCHBEEENABECER
ZRZARPISMER BE A
MZBAEMELAZZEERE
SRR TZEGA NI
BEAVGN2BEEXEE (HEE
EHavtz —#ma IR - RHE
KB RR 2R ERBCERZ
R (HENEERHEZE  RABRRA
SE R ARSI BRI 2 R BER
BRZBRAAF EE O 2 B
ER SMBEAHNBER  AIRR
RIRATREERRBR 2 ER) -

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR

"\*

85



86

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(d), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—ZF—WNF+-A=+—HILFE

88

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future

(p)

BERIAEE (E)

fisd 78 B A 48 0 B 25 2 AT g 1 T
Ko LA S At SR
BRIFBABNECENR 2B E R
- BRIBEEEEEEASIRAR
FURE ERETHREE LN
—HYI N EEMRKAAREZE
R - BRIFEBN BN 2
SHRH BRITERBERXAE

events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless El
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
(@) Revenue recognition () WEmER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of cremation
services, cemetery services, funeral arrangement
services and funeral services in funeral parlours

Wz TﬁzEHﬁZjZFEHMJEFZ NS
2o BEENZ ’TET@E//?E)\Z’SK
& i U as R A AR (fiwsE R ) B
FHETER - g ER EPEEM
N

(i) IR
REBERZ BEENES
PR AR B R O A AR
HERS  BERHRS R

and funeral service centres under the Group's BERB W - R AR
management is recognised when the services are TSR HER

rendered.

(i) Sale of goods including marble stones
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts and returns.
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BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii)  Sale of burial plots

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from sales of burial plots is recognized
when the contract is signed by the buyer, a
significant amount of deposits of the contracted
value received and the relevant identified burial
plots are delivered to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received from buyers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under “receipts in
advance”.

Cemetery maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of cemetery
maintenance services is deferred and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the remaining
estimated service period.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(r)

(vii) Commission income
Commission income represents the income
received or receivable from referring of cubicles
and spaces for urn storage in columbarium and
referring of cemetery for customers.

Commission income is recognised when the final
customers accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

(viii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of operations outside PRC (“non-PRC
operations”) are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (that is a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a non-PRC
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a non-PRC operation, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes non-PRC operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and is not recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ES:B%E ()

(Continued)

(t) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third

entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

"
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Company’s Executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) Investment Entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined
in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required
to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss. These amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be
an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or cash — generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided there disclosures in
notes to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have any
derivatives that are subject to novation.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised.
The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group’s
existing accounting policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZEZ—ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HBIFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. E2XHRS9BEIH

(a) Turnover (a) =HE

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration

EBRBREAREFREHRRS kM
EPHEEMNE LB Z K
ERAHE RFREXEBRTERLZ

received and receivable for the services rendered to

customers and goods sold to customers. The amount

of each significant category of revenue recognised in EEXEERRERSENOT
turnover during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—Z—mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Funeral services provided in REEERE 2 BiEER
funeral parlours and BERTE LR
funeral service centres under 2 BER
the Group’s management 47,816 42,491
Cremation services NAL AR 12,544 12,093
Funeral arrangement services BETHRT 4,289 4,904
Cemetery services ZERB 3,191 3,618
Sale of burial plots HE i 1,808 -
69,648 63,106
(b) Segment information (b) HEER

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, NEFIRDIPEIBH 2K fH 2l

which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines (products and services) and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Company’s executive
directors (the “Executive Directors”), the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(i)  Funeral services — Taiwan
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
funeral services deed holders in Taiwan.

(i) Funeral services — Hong Kong
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

(iii)  Funeral services — the PRC

Provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery
services in funeral parlours and funeral
service centres in the PRC under the Group's
management, pursuant to the respective
management agreements entered into with the
owners of funeral parlours and funeral service
centres.

(iv) Funeral services — Vietnam
Sale of burial plots and provision of cemetery
services in Vietnam.

Reporting of operating segment units have been
revised to conform to the latest business model of the
Group which excludes the trading of raw marble for
the year ended 31 December 2014 as the Executive
Directors no longer consider it as an operating
segment due to the scale down of the business.
This classification is reported on the same basis as
is used by Executive Directors to analyse its business
performance.

The comparative information of the above has been
restated to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Executive Directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

(i) FEEAREE —
R IR 7R (68 R R &R
DEEANF LS DER
W EAR P ERAREE
BERENBEERBERES
DREREE MEREERR
f% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—ZF—WNF+-A=+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)
(Continued)

98

(b) Segment information (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, receipts in advance and current tax liabilities
attributable to the activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segment results represent the loss suffered by each
segment without allocation of valuation gain on
investment property, other revenue and other net loss,
central administration costs, finance costs and income
tax. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive Directors
are provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation, loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, impairment
loss and reversal of impairment loss on other
receivables, (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
income tax expenses, loss on derecognition of assets
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+ A =+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)
Information regarding the Group's reportable EHEBEE_T—NEFRER_F
segments as provided to the Executive Directors for —=F+ZA=t—RLFEZ
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment BRDBERFTEDHRBRANT
of segment performance for the years ended 31 EERHEIIRES T 2ERE
December 2014 and 2013 is set out below: BN

Year ended 31 December 2014
$§E_S-ME+-AZ+-HLEE

Funeral services

R
Taiwan  Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Total
B 5 HE ] #at

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TRE AR®RTRT AR®TRT AER®BTRT ARRTR

Reportable segment revenue [R5 5 Ui E

~ Revenue from external - RENNAEP W
customers 2,383 1,906 63,551 1,808 69,648

Reportable segment loss AHREHBER (2,215) (403) (575) (1,432) (4,625)
Interest income FIEBA 18 - 316 1 335
Interest expenses FERX 219 - - - 219
Depreciation and amortisation AN [ 37 % [ & &5

for the year 224 45 3,794 298 4,361
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HENE BER

property, plant and Szl (B8)

equipment a4 9) (281) (10) (259)
Loss on derecognition of assets HUHEREE 2 &1 - - 6,316 - 6,316
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HH&M BAR 2 EE - - 796 - 79
Income tax expenses FERAS - - 609 - 609
Reportable segment assets AREHBEE 176,408 790 50,389 33,505 261,092
Additions to non-current RERTEHRED

segment assets during HHEE

the year 430 31 3,119 523 4,103
Reportable segment liabilities 7355 3 & & 97,100 779 6,482 2,329 106,690
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(b)

DHRPER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE-Z-=F+-A=1t—-HIFE
Funeral services
BERY%
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Total
= B HEl i @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Reportable segment revenue AR5 2 H i
— Revenue from external ~-REMREPYE
customers 3,391 1,513 58,202 - 63,106
Reportable segment loss AREDHEE (2,947) (1,068) (897) (1,358) (6,270)
Interest income FIEBA 4 - 161 4 169
Interest expenses FlBEEX 234 - - - 234
Depreciation and amortisation 7N 4 & 47 & [ # 85
for the year 220 316 4,437 58 5,031
Loss on disposal of LEWE BEK
property, plant and FEER
equipment 1,338 - 4,088 - 5,426
Impairment loss on other HitRWIE  REEE
receivables - - 486 - 486
Reversal of impairment loss on Bl &Ly FE Wi 3008 2
other receivables RERE - - 407 - 407
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries {1 &M E A A4tz - - 604 - 604
Income tax expenses FBRAY - - 848 - 848
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 176,355 954 53,991 31,965 263,265
Additions to non-current RERREFRD
segment assets during DEEE
the year 20 - 8,827 5,933 14,780
Reportable segment liabilities ~ A[ k&5 2 & & & 103,633 631 6,798 1,478 112,590

There are no inter-segment sales during the year
(2013: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEBER (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, #RE D AW B BE R
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items: BRAMEL 2k -
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Revenue &=
Total reportable segment revenue 7] ¥} 45 > 2R UL S 4B BE K
and consolidated turnover A EERE 69,648 63,106
Profit or loss "a
Total reportable segment loss AEENSEFPEEZ
derived from Group's external AmEDHEEEE
customers (4,625) (6,270)
Valuation gains on investment WEYE 2 AW
property 765
Other revenue H U = 3,755 1,628
Other net loss E 18558 (1,217) (1,856)
Finance costs BB A AR (414) (346)
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHB R RRFZ
corporate expenses
— Depreciation and — e R
amortisation (950) (988)
— Auditors’ remuneration —ZHE & (1,032) (1,094)
~ Legal and professional fee —EEREEER (574) (1,018)
- Staff cost (including —BIKAKN(BRIEES
directors’ remuneration) B ) (4,990) (4,476)
— Operating lease charges: —EEHET L &K
minimum lease payments HERFEE (149) (377)
— Equity-settled share-based —ARREAERG A
payment expenses B2 (1) (287)
— Others —HAb (1,555) (882)
Consolidated loss before taxation 434 K FiRIE 18 (10,987) (15,966)
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets ~ AJ¥R&E D EBEELE 261,092 263,265
Unallocated head office and ROBBE R ARIEE
corporate assets
— Cash and cash equivalents —-RekReFEEYD 14,952 31,025
— Deposits and prepayments — e RIENFIE 709 731
— Property, plant and equipment  —4¥1% B E N 2R 8 2,465 3,355
— Others —HAb 3,877 4,012
Consolidated total assets REBEERE 283,095 302,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—ZF—WNF+-A=+—HILFE
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items:

(b) ZEPEFR (&

O#RESE W 1w EE-B
ERAEMELZEH K (&)

(Continued)
2014 2013
—E=—WmE —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT AREFIT
Liabilities a8
Total reportable segment mESHaFEEE
liabilities 106,690 112,590
Unallocated head office and KOBBBREAREE
corporate liabilities 1,648 3,178
Consolidated total liabilities reaEes 108,338 115,768
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AER®TT AREFTT
Other items HttEH
Interest income B A
Reportable segment total ARE D E R 335 169
Unallocated head office and ROBARI K AF]
corporate total FEk) 1,120 1,236
Consolidated total REHARE 1,455 1,405
Interest expenses MEFX
Reportable segment total BIE R F L 219 234
Unallocated head office and AN o Y SR/
corporate total 1B 195 112
Consolidated total e wEER 414 346
Depreciation and amortisation HrE R
Reportable segment total iﬁ%ﬁa‘ﬂiﬁ # 4,361 5,031
Unallocated head office and AN o Y SR/
corporate total 4 %E 950 988
Consolidated total REwEE 5,311 6,019
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. B EXHRSBEH (1)
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items:
(Continued)

&7 el 1Rt BE R
ERAMER K (&

2014 2013
—Z—@mE —ET—=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment HfEEE
Reportable segment total RS D ARRE 259 5,426
Unallocated head office and RAOBI R
corporate total NS FERS 16 -
Consolidated total IRA B 275 5,426
Additions to non-current NERNRE 2
segment assets during FmEnHEE
the year
Reportable segment total ARSI AREE 4,103 14,780
Unallocated head office and ROBLAEE &
corporate total NIFER - 66
Consolidated total e KasE 4,103 14,846
Geographical information &R

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers;
and (i) the Group's property, plant and equipment,
investment property, prepaid lease payments,
intangible assets and deposits for hire of funeral
parlours and funeral services centres. The geographical
location of customers refers to the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment, investment property, prepaid lease
payments and deposits for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral services centres are based on the physical
location of the assets under consideration. In the
case of intangible assets, it is based on the location
of the operation to which these intangible assets are
allocated.

TRGDEBOAKERBINFE
Pz RiVAREZYME  BE
Lk wEWE BNHEER
B EVEENMERBEENES
RIGH L ZREZAELE R D
1 o B P Z FriE e ThHa iR (AR TS
AR EmZ R - Y - W M
BE REME BAEEFER
HAEEEIBEREH LR
SZESRAEEEENRE
RUBEREE -HRETEE R
NED LSBT EE 2 EBPT
T A ESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

(b)

Revenue from
external customers

DERER (&)
HEEH (&)

Non-current assets

RESPREFWRE ERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
~B-mE —E-=F —E2-mE —E-=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AB%TR AREFTL AR®TTR AREFTL
The PRC (place of domicile) Bl (5Efft34) 63,551 58,202 20,361 30,763
Taiwan =) 2,383 3,391 26,965 25,515
Hong Kong 'R 1,906 1,513 405 563
Vietnam e 1,808 - 1,282 8,592
6,097 4,904 28,652 34,670
69,648 63,106 49,013 65,433
Revenue from major product and services FTEERRRB Wz
2014 2013
—Z—@mEF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREETTT
Funeral services provided in rEEERE EEER
funeral parlours and BERGH OIRME
funeral service centres under BER
the Group’s management 47,816 42,491
Cremation services NAERR 7 12,544 12,093
Funeral arrangement services iR HERT 4,289 4,904
Cemetery services ERRYS 3,191 3,618
Sale of burial plots SHE E 1,808 -
69,648 63,106
Information about major customers TEEFEH

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NETLOSS 5. Hfilk SR HEtE iR B8
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=F
RMB’'000 Rl\/lB 000
AR®TT AREF T
Other revenue Hfhlr 2
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF R FBWA 1,455 1,405
Total interest income on financial W3R A FERFAE
assets not at fair value through B WBEEL
profit or loss T B AT 1,455 1,405
Sundry income T 237 212
Rental income from investment BEYEZHSRA
property 170 -
Sub-leasing rental income Lfﬂfﬁé’?ﬂﬂl?\ 12 11
Consultancy income B RR TS HA 1,881 -
3,755 1,628
Other net loss HtEGIRBHE
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEM B AR
subsidiaries (note 33) (E18) Wz
(BffE33) (796) 604
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment B2 BB (275) (5,426)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of BEBRZ LMK
land and buildings held EF 2 EM
for own use (B4 /Bt (420) 476
Net exchange gain/(loss) BE 5 ez,
(E518) #73 3 (1,460)
Net gain on foreign exchange SN 3R B & 4
forward contracts W 55 - 1,002
Net gain on terminated and lapsed BRI R 2 B E
funeral services deeds AR TG IR AW 75 5 58 35 155
Net realised and unrealised gain on BE R AT ERA
financial assets designated as at TE*ZEMKEFZ
fair value through profitorloss B # S RARFRIW
m/?%?i\ 236 2,386
Reversal of impairment loss on other 1 [0 H  JE YR IE 2
receivables BEEE - 407
(1,217) (1,856)
2,538 (228)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

6. FRMAIEGIR

BRELATEE &G (5T A) T5IE

the followings: Big&EETE:
2014 2013
—E—-mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARBFT
(a) Finance costs (a) MERF
Interests on bank borrowings RITEEREME
and other loan 2B
— wholly repayable —ERAFANE
within 5 years HIEE 250 167
— not wholly repayable —BERAEFRN
within 5 years TEEE 164 179
Total interest expenses on WL AT 1E
financial liabilities not at FAEEZ
fair value through profit or VEeEz
loss FEFX 414 346

EREREERBEE 2T
TEEERBHE D ZRITEE (8
RBHBRERERIERZBITE
B)RMERA T -HE2—ZF—N
FH+-—A=+—RALFE " TEH
BERERERERZRITEE
BREFNFEAL (ZE—=F:

AE#25,0007T) °

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank
borrowings, including bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. For the year ended 31 December
2014, there is no interest expense (2013: RMB25,000)
recognised on bank borrowings which contain a
repayment on demand clause.

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR#®TT AREFIT
(b) Staff costs (including (b) BEIR®E
directors’ emoluments) (BIE==%H)
Salaries, wages and other He IEK
benefits H b 48 7 18,779 17,899
Equity-settled share-based VARG 7 45 E IR 19
payment expenses BEREZ
e = 115
Contributions to defined EREH IR
contribution retirement plans ST &Ik 2,082 1,894
20,861 19,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

—E-NF+-A=+—BHIEFE
6. BRINAIEIE ()

2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREF T
() Other items (¢ EHMIFH
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE & FRIE 8
payments 82 82
Auditors' remuneration ZEE & 1,032 1,094
Cost of inventories FERA 6,996 9,572
Gross rental income from WEYERS KA
investment property #agE 170 -
Depreciation e 5,229 5,937
Operating lease for property, Y S MR
plant and equipment charges: KEHEY 'd:'
minimum lease payments HEREENKE
— rented premises —THAWE 830 902
Less: sub-leasing rental B EiEE
income ON (12) (11)
818 891
— hire of plant and equipment —AME K&
1 186 180
— hire of funeral parlours and —HABREER
funeral service centres B EIR
JI 12,986 13,899
Operating lease charges: KEMRER T :
contingent rents RS
— hire of funeral parlours and —THRAEESE
funeral service centres NI
AR TG 0 642 535
Impairment loss on H b FEBGRIE 2
other receivables REEE - 486
Loss on derecognition of assets BUBHREEZ
(note (i) BE (MEE)) 6,316 -
Equity-settled share-based VAR 45 B I 1 7
payment expenses it 2 5 i 1 287
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

6.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Note (i):

This represents of loss arising from the derecognition of property,
plant and equipment, inventories, prepayment upon the termination
of operation of Chongging Zhong County Funeral Parlour (2
BSRTE{EER) (“ZCFP”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Pursuant to a management agreement dated 12 November 2009
("ZCFP Management Agreement”) entered into by Chongging
Xibao Funeral Technology Company Limited (“Chongging Xibao"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Zhong County
Mortuary Service Centre (the "ZCFP Owner"”), ZCFP Owner
agreed to engage Chongging Xibao to manage the ZCFP from
15 November 2009 to 14 November 2029. During the tenure of
the ZCFP Management Agreement, Chongging Xibao is entitled
to all profits generated from the provision of funeral services in
ZCFP and is responsible for all the losses and expenses incurred
for the provision of such services and is required to pay an annual
management fee to the ZCFP Owner.

During the vyear, the directors of the Group reassessed the
performance of ZCFP and considered that due to the continuing
loss-making of ZCFP, it is of the Group’s best interest to terminate
the ZCFP Management Agreement.

Accordingly, a rescission agreement (“Rescission Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) were
entered into between Chongging Xibao and the ZCFP Owner
on 19 November 2014 and 28 November 2014 respectively. The
ZCFP Management Agreement was terminated with immediate
effect. As a result, Chongqing Xibao has ceased the operation of
ZCFP. Pursuant to the Rescission Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement, ZCFP Owner agreed to pay an aggregate of
RMB2,324,000 to Chongqging Xibao for compensation of the
loss on property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of RMB7,124,000, inventories of RMB269,000, prepayment for
usage of facilities of ZCFP of RMB1,247,000. The total loss on
derecognition of assets of RMB6,316,000 was included in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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BEARARZZ2ENBLAREEHERER
RERAGB ([EEHE]) BEERERE
EBERL([RGEEEHEEANRZZT
NWET—A+TZBITUNERERE ([RBR
BETERZ]) REBREEEEARERS
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A+NA ZREEESHEERAEREE-
REBREEETERZEIABAN  EEH
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ZETERE RAERREREBRSEmEE
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AZNFEEERE-

RER REBEEEHTEEFBEESEZ
ZBR URRANREFEREHEERSE
BRI DREEREERREITERE
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. #HFaR&FXRAZMHER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2014 2013
—F—mE —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Current tax: BVEAR 18 :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 1 B TS AR
(note (c)) (KiEE())
Current period N HA R 1,141 848
Over-provision in prior years MEFEHE
B (532) -
Total HEt 609 848
Notes: Pt =E

(a)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for both years.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") for both years.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to Enterprise
Income Tax rate at 25% (2013: 25%) in accordance with
the Law of the People’s Republlc of China on Enterprises
Income Tax (AR ZE AR ELME B EFTEHE) except
that Chongging Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited
("Chongging Xizhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%
(2013:15%) in accordance with FEEBAFIEE D EFFEFIER,
which is retrospectively applied to Chongging Xizhou from
January 2011 and, provided that the conditions precedent to
entitlement of preferential tax rate are fulfilled by Chongqing
Xizhou in each of subsequent years, the preferential tax rate
can be applied to Chongging Xizhou up to December 2020.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, Chongging Xizhou is
subject to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2013: 15%).

HRAEERMEFERECEEE
EEAERBEF - R B FE
TSR -

REBENMIEFEHBAMNR SR
& BEDREBERIES ([RER
RS BUARER Z AR

%#ﬁ@%ZW%@Eﬁ@E¢$A

HEAMBEREMESRAE25% (ZF
f—i 25% ) 2 (B ZEFTIS B R 47 -
WARNB ZBEE2ENBAREED
ARERGAER AR ([EEHE])
Tﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%% RERIR
15% (ZE—=ZF:15% ) 2 BEER
ZRNF - MEESEAREHERAER
BEBRE_ZT——F— A MKHE
EHRARERSFEEXNFHEEY
R RIGHE AEESEAN—HE
AEEMERE_T_TF+_A-%
HE-_Z-—NF+-A=+—HILF
g EBESREBZRISY% (ZE—=F:
15% ) Z (DTS B RN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. BB E&FXAZHBRN(1H\)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MEE: (&)
(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”), a (d) AREzEEMBARELEGRRE

direct subsidiary of the Company, and Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. ("Bao De"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
are subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2013:
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan. No
provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as Bau Shan and Bao De have no assessable profits for both
years.

(e)  Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan (e)
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are subject
to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2013: 25%) and
20% (2013: 20%), respectively, on taxable profits determined
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
Vietnam. No provision for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax
has been made as Bao Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no
assessable profits for both years.

(f) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at (f)
applicable tax rates:

BHBERAR ([FL)) RAARLH
B BAAREESFERA AR
A ([ A5t R & 2 5 13 B
RE (AR A R 2 R B AR
17% (ZF—=4 17%) M A0
5715 Bt e B R B AT
EHmERBRT] AR ER A D
eLEaGt E

ARARIzHEFRZEMBELRIEIL
EmEEAERAA ([BlLEw]) R
Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation
(THLV Duc Hoa | ) 783t 1R 1% i B 4E
AR ROERETE 2 FERBUR M 9 RliE
20% (ZZ—=%:25%) }20% (=
T—=F:20% ) 2 RERGMMRETE
Fr5 %1 o B 8 1L A &5 &2 HLV Duc Hoa
O M 4F [ 45 I R AR A Ve A - AR AR
HUEEMRSHIEL -

BEAREFHEZRERA e E
1Bz 9k

2014 2013
—Z—mE —T—Z4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Loss before taxation FRELATE B (10,987) (15,966)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, %8R AR E R A
calculated at the rates applicable to @& I8 2 BB
loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned % Rt & 2 B F Al
EERETIE (2,113) (3,653)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A )8 2 i 32 2 Fi 7%
2 3,699 4,231
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAZRBBAZHBTZE (611) (777)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 #E AT 15 5 18 2 51 75
e 671 1,080
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax ~ BFABEFE K ER
not recognised in prior years AAMAHIEZ RS E (196) -
Over-provision in prior years WA FERERE (532) -
Others Eh (309) (33)
Actual tax expense R FRIAR X 609 848
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32) is as follows:

8. EEHM

RIBF BB R MBI R1155781K (5
622F ) M2MREB RN AUEHIE1611K
(FERNE)BTFREZESFHFHUT

2014
—g-mE
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors R4 Fees  allowances bonuses contributions  Sub-total payment Total
BFiER DY)
it HERAM Rt HEIfR hit BERMR B
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AERTR AERWTR AR®RTRT ARRTRT ARBTT ARRTT ARRTR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai b 953 955 70 - 1,978 - 1978
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBRA 191 115 37 - 343 - 343
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh TREHZE (RZF-NF
(resigned on 1 September 2014) NA—BEE) 286 360 40 6 692 = 692
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BRBEE 56 - - - 56 - 56
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 56 - - - 56 - 56
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FEAEE 56 - - - 56 - 56
1,598 1,430 147 6 3,181 - 3,181
2013
=%
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and  Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors 524 Fees  allowances bonuses ~ contributions Sub-total payment Total
RINER Y
BE HoREE O BBRL  HIHEX i BERH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai el 951 1 64 - 1,256 - 1,256
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEREE 190 627 - - 817 3 820
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh TRERE 285 1,046 - 7 1,338 - 1,338
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BRExE 56 - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-Ris 5 - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FEALE 56 - - - 56 - 56
1,59 1,914 64 7 3,579 3 3,582
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for both years.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the director held share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The
details of the share options are disclosed in note 40.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2013: three) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments of the remaining three (2013: two) individuals
were as follows:

8.

9.

EEHM ()

RMEFE  NABRESEFREDTM
R AEEBERTAES T
P B R IIA SR IIAAR R B 2
BER) SIFRRERAR(E -

RZE—NER-_T—=ZF+_A8
—t—H EEHEAQRERETE
TE TR B ARAE - BRARAE 2 1B A BT 740
W

EETWAL

AR REERHFALEERSE (ZF
—=F:=R)EE HFN M ESE
E-HBR-EZ (= WMA)ES
FALZHMEEEmT

2014 2013
—F—HmF —E=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT

Salaries, allowances and other e R REMER
benefits 1,388 985
Discretionary bonuses 1B TEAL 78 50
Share-based payment expense ARG (0 BERE 2 MR F X - 24

Contributions to retirement RRE A ET B

benefit scheme 19 12
1,485 1,071

The emoluments of the three (2013: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

=% (ZF-=4:MB)BATALLZ
FONFTIIRE:

2014 2013
—Z—mF —E—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T (#HE R
(equivalent to RMB794,200 AR#E794,2007T
(2013: RMB793,000)) (Z&—=
AR #793,0007T) ) 3 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 09.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2013: two) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive loss for both years.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of RMB4,415,000 (2013:
RMB22,289,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB11,142,000 (2013: RMB16,175,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2013: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 as the impact of the
share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented. Therefore, the
calculation of the diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB11,142,000 (2013: RMB16,175,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2013: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

10.

1.

12.

EEFAL ()

RREFEAR NEEHRERTA =%
—TZF MB)REHALMNES

AR F A BNE S IA SR IIAZR

KB 2 2R SFRRERERE

HEth2EEHR

RREFEAR &0 L ERE B EE
EBEZBREE -

FOFHAAEGEGR

AARHEAABNGABEREER
KRR ZHMBBREARZEEBAR
#4,415,000L (ZE2E—=F: AR¥
22,289,0007T) °

BRBR

(a) BRELXEE
BREARNEBEDREBERRAGHESR
ANEAE BB ARE11,142,0007T
(ZZE—=%F: AR¥16,175,000
T0) RFEANBE BT EBRMNETFY
£0742,500,000 (= ZF —=4F:
742,500,0000% @AY ) 5T & -

(b) BR#EEERE

BE_Z—NUEFE_FT—=F
+ZA=+—"HULEFE 27
ZEBREABESBITEELT
B RNAEEREZZEYHMET
ZERELRNBESEAREE
ME-Ei BREFHEETR
BARQRHA ABLEEARE
11,142,000 (ZZE—=F: AR
#16,175,0007C) L F A E 17T
I 38 A DN AE 35 20742,500,0000%

—Z&— =14 :742,500,0004% &
AR FTE -
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMBNil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group’s PRC and Vietnam
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to scheme
based on certain percentage of the relevant portion of the
payroll of all qualifying employees in accordance with the
relevant regulations in the PRC and Vietnam respectively. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered and
operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan for
employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme, the
employers are required to make contributions to the scheme
at 6% of the employees’ relevant income. Contributions to
the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month (HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the retirement benefit
schemes beyond the contributions described above.
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EETEIRBE_T—MOFE+_A
=S+ -BLEFEERFEARE(ZF
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AEEFTERBENEARZEEEA
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AEBETERRGERAZEES
AESTREBEE REE 2 ERMUN
BB S - RIFTE BREBERE
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AEBEEERBREERE G Z FLAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

%R M et

ME+—A=+—HIFE

B 7

For the year ended 31 December 2014 H &= —Z —
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M -BERRE

The Group (a) &%H
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value ~ improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
ERAFEE
4 R RER
THREF HERE  HOZRRE RE ERIE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT  ARETR ARETx  ARETR  ARETR
Cost or valuation BFHMHE
At 1 January 2013 RZE-ZF-f— 30,441 12,030 7991 4,354 11,982 66,798
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEFERZ %’%
differences (1,577) (53) (157) (46) (105) (1,938)
Additions NE - 175 551 1,875 2,601
Reclassification from development BERRRUMAENHE
and formation costs (note 20) (Fi5E20) 2,641 - - - - 2,641
Construction expenditure capitalised BEERZ IRAX - - - - 12,245 12,245
Transfers g% - 9,350 4,080 - (13,430) -
Disposals e (2,768) (1,760) - (35) (5,540) (10,424)
Surplus on revaluation ERRY 892 - - - - 892
Less: Elimination of accumulated W RSEHE
depreciation (220) - - - - (220)
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-ZE+-A=+-H 29,409 19,742 12,465 5,827 5,152 72,595
Representing: Bp:
Cost A - 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 43,186
Valuation - 2013 “Z-CFEfE 29,409 - - - - 29,409
29,409 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 72,595
At 1 January 2014 T-ME-A—H 29,409 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 72,595
Effect of foreign currency exchange 9\‘%[%%32?/ &
differences (639) (13) il 6 - (575)
Additions RE - 207 988 1214 - 2,409
Redlassification to development and BERRKUMAENHE
formation costs (note 20) (Ff5E20) (2,597) - - - (4,821) (7,418)
Construction expenditure capitalised BEERZ TRAY - - - - 1,694 1,694
Transfers E L - 628 1363 - (1,991) -
Disposals e - (1,832) (324) (1,263) - (3419)
Surplus on revaluation BB 965 - - - - 965
Derecognised on termination of FILEEEERERERTEER
operation of ZCFP (note 6(c)() (W3E6(0))) - (8768) (218) - - (8,986)
Derecognised on disposal of HENB A ARIEER
subsidiaries (note 33) (Ff5E33) - (260) - - - (260)
Reclassification to investment BREMEENHE (MH17)
property (note 17) (3,724) - - - - (3,724)
Less: Elimination of accumulated W R TEHS
depreciation (187) - - - - (187)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NF+-A=1+-8 23,227 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094
Representing: B:
Cost A 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 29,867
Valuation - 2014 “T-UEfRE 23227 - 23,227
23,227 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —NF+_-_A=1+—HIFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. #3 - BiE R &% W (1)
(Continued)
(@) The Group (Continued) (a) A&KE (&)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
LRAFE
il 4 R’i-RER
THEET BERE WAERGE RE ERIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR

Accumulated depreciation and RHFERFEE

impairment
At 1 January 2013 W=%-=%-f-AH - 6,670 2,252 2,010 - 10,932
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREREI Y E

differences @ (24) (49) (5 - (82)
Charge for the year ERT M 24 2,726 2,021 966 - 5,937
Elimination on disposals e - (1,760) - (190) - (1,950)
Elimination on revaluation g (220) - - - - (220)
At 31 December 2013 WZE-Z&+-A=1+-8 - 7612 4224 2,781 - 14,617
At 1 January 2014 iy =] - 7,612 4,224 2,781 - 14,617
Effect of foreign currency exchange QWLFL%EZW =

differences (5 12 18 4 - 29
Charge for the year FR%E 192 1,731 2317 989 - 5,29
Elimination on disposals HERLHE - (1,781) (253) (920) - (2,954)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries (& M B2 & E 4184 ([5433)

(note 33) - (43) - - - (@3)
Derecognised on termination of FLEEEERERERTARR

operation of ZCFP (note 6(c)(i) (FizE6(0) - (1,738) (124) - - (1,862)
Elimination on revaluation BRRRHH (187) - - - - (187)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-WE+-A=1-H - 5793 6,182 2854 - 14,829

Carrying amounts EEE

At 31 December 2014 RZE-RE+-A=+-H 23,227 3911 8,163 2,930 34 38,265
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-A=1+-H 29,409 12,130 8,241 3,046 5152 57,978
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+ A =+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 . ¥ - BB ()
(Continued)
(b) The Company (b)y A&AF
Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment Total
EH -KER
MAOEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREF T
Cost B#F
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 3,434 3,434
Effect of foreign currency HIBEREZER FE
exchange differences (105) (105)
Additions NE 60 60
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=%f+-A=+—H 3,389 3,389
At 1 January 2014 A\ ZF-mE—-A—H 3,389 3,389
Effect of foreign currency HIBERER FZE
exchange differences 86 86
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-—NE+-_A=+—H 3,475 3,475
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=f—-H—H 172 172
Effect of foreign currency INEERER 2 FE
exchange differences (15) (15)
Charge for the year FRX M 683 683
At 31 December 2013 R-_E-—=%+-A=1+—H 840 840
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MF—-H—H 840 840
Effect of foreign currency INEERER 2 FE
exchange differences 28 28
Charge for the year FRX M 689 689
At 31 December 2014 RZT—MF
+-A=+—H 1,557 1,557
Carrying amounts IRE{E
At 31 December 2014 R_F-NFE+-A=1+—A 1,918 1,918
At 31 December 2013 W_E—=%+"A=+—H 2,549 2,549
FEEREBERAT —T-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Had the revalued land and buildings held for own use
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the

—OE+ZA=t—HLFE

15. Mk -BE R (&)

(0 MFHIFERZEERLHBRET
TIARRASR R &SR - BREE

carrying amounts would have been: BT
The Group
F5KE

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Land and buildings i RETF 18,887 25,057

(d) Fair value measurement of properties

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE EBERSE (&)
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties (d) MEZ2AFEFTZ (E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) A-FEERE)
Fair value at
31 December
2014 Fair value measurements as at
RZB-M% 31 December 2014 categorised into
+=8 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=+-8 RIZ-ME+ZA=+-HZ
ZOFE AFEHERES

F-E BoR BZR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

The Group *50 ABRTT ARBTR ARRTRT  ARTR
Recurring fair value BERLTENE

measurement

Freehold land and buildings - KAZETH

Taiwan kET-0E 21,386 - - 21,386

Buildings - The PRC BF-+ 1,841 - - 1,841
23,227 - - 23,227
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Fair value measurements as at
RZE-=% 31 December 2013 categorised into
+-A Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=t+-A RZE-Z#+-A=z+-Hz
LDBTE NHEGERER
£-E E°E F-E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group *50 AREFT  ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Recurring fair value BERLTENE
measurement
Freehold land and buildings - KAERELHRET-

Taiwan A 24,564 - - 24,564
Freehold land - Vietnam KAZEL -1 2,601 - - 2,601
Buildings - The PRC BF-H 2,244 - - 2,244

29,409 - - 29,409

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR

119



120

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(1)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, there were no transfers between
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers into/out of fair value
hierarchy levels as of the date of event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

All of the Group's freehold land and buildings
held for own use were revalued as at 31
December 2014. The valuations were carried out
by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited
in the current year and by Roma Appraisals
Limited in 2013, both are independent firms of
chartered surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Group’s directors have discussed
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation are
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

(i)

15. Y% BB R (#8)

(d) MEZLFEFE (F)

Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BE=FELFETEZE

measurements )
Valuation Unobservable

techniques input Range Range

fEEH AUEEBAE &E #[E

2014 2013

—Z-mE —T-=F

Freehold land and buildings  Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (20%) to 15% 5% to 50%

- Taiwan

KAEELHREF-RE EBEELRE MEETHEE (20%)E15% 5%Z50%

Freehold land - Vietnam Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate - 5% to 40%

KAERLT B BEREEE MERTRER - 5%Z40%

Buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate 4% to 8% 5% to 20%

BF-HE BEELRE MERERER 4%ZE8% 5%ZE20%

The fair value of properties held for own use Reg HmktPEFEERZMEZ

located in Taiwan, Vietnam and the PRC is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to the market price of comparable

properties and adjusted for building quality, o
location of the properties and timing of the

reference transactions.

RNHENERERLEEEE 22%
AfLEEYEZTE YH2ERXHZ
BTEE MEMEMREREELS

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

15. Mk -BE R (&)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

(d)

Mz N PEE ()

(i) BHEE=FLFHEIEZE

measurements (Continued) H(#E)
The movements during the period in R EE =B AT E
the balances of these Level 3 fair value EEBEFHIT:
measurements are as follows:
Freehold
land and Freehold
buildings land Buildings
- Taiwan - Vietnam - The PRC Total
KAER kAR
THRETF tith #F
-RiE - -HE i
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTF T ARBETT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE-=F—-A—-H 28,149 - 2,292 30,441
Depreciation charge for the year ~ RN EHER X (176) - 48) (224)
Reclassification from development { B3 % Jz ik 3L Ak Ak
and formation costs (note 20) EHHE (MF20) - 2,641 - 2,641
Effect of foreign currency NEEREENTE
exchange differences (1,533) (40) - (1,573)
Disposals HERE (2,768) - - (2,768)
Surplus on revaluation AR
~ recognised in other -REM2EEBRRER
comprehensive loss, included (GtATHEER
in " properties revaluation el
reserve” 416 - - 416
— recognised in profit or loss,
included in "other net loss” 476 - - 476
At 31 December 2013
24,564 2,601 2,244 29,409
At 1 January 2014 RZE—WMF—-A—H 24,564 2,601 2,244 29,409
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AFEHER X (139) - (48) (187)
Reclassification to development — #EFE R LM AEH 2 E
and formation costs (note 20) (PBEE20) - (2,597) - (2,597)
Effect of foreign currency SVEEH ZENTE
exchange differences (635) (4) - (639)
Redlassification to investment ENNEERENE
property (note 17) (PzE17) (3,724) - - (3,724)
Surplus on revaluation AR
— recognised in other -REM2EBBEER
comprehensive loss, included (GtATHEER
in " properties revaluation REl)
reserve” 1,385 - - 1,385
~ recognised in profit or loss, —REERR GrATEf
included in “other net loss" BEFE]) (65) - (355) (420)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NE
+ZA=+—H 21,386 - 1,841 23,227

i
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

15. Y% BB R (#8)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(9

Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences
of properties held for own use are recognised in
other comprehensive loss in “foreign currency
translation reserve”.

The analysis of carrying amounts of prepaid lease
payments and buildings thereon is as follows:

(d)

(e)

M2 NPHERE (&)

(i) BEE=ELFEIEZE
# (&)
FHEERMZMEZINEESR
ERZTERNER#RE]
T EMbEHEERER -

BRENEENRE AR
W BFREBIMNAT

The Group
F5ME
2014 2013
—ZT—mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTF T
In the PRC iy
Leasehold land (note 16) fAE i (MisE16) 3,753 3,835
Buildings gF 1,841 2,244
5,594 6,079

The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
and other loans were RMB17,462,000 (2013:
RMB16,758,000) (note 26) and RMBNil (2013:
RMB3,724,000) (note 27), respectively, as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, a freehold land in Taiwan of
RMB3,724,000 was held under trust arrangements.

()

(9

W_ZE—MFE+-_A=+—8"
EHRBEALAEERTEER
Hih BERE R R KA EREL
HEEFHEAED I AARE
17,462,0000 (ZE—=F: AR
#16,758,0007T) (M7E26) & A
BEBET(ZT—=%F: AR
3,724,0007T) (Bi7E27) -

RZE—=F+=—RA=+—8"
U & EEEAARYS 724,000
TCRI K AERE L IRBETL
R A o

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. MfTHB =

The Group
xEE
2014 2013
—Z—mF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFIT
The Group's prepaid lease AEB s BANHEENRBE:
payments comprise:
Land in the PRC: AR Bz i
Medium-term lease FRERFA 49 3,753 3,835
Analysed for reporting purposes as: St 2R B DT A
Current assets MENEE 82 82
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,671 3,753
3,753 3,835
The Group
xEE
2014 2013
—ZE—QmEF =%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFIT
At 1 January n—H—H 3,835 3,917
Amortisation charge for the year KEZHEER (82) (82)
At 31 December (note 15(e)) R+=—A=+—A8 (K&E156)) 3,753 3,835

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. HEYME

The Group
*%E
RMB’000
AREF T
At fair value ZAYE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 RZE—=F—H—HB ZZ2—=%F
and 1 January 2014 F+TZA=+T—HERZZE—NF
—A—H -
Transfer from property, EEYE - BE REE (F15)
plant and equipment (note 15) 3,724
Effect of foreign currency exchange HINEE R ZRENTE (GTA
differences, included in “foreign [FEHFE#E])
currency translation reserve” (114)
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss HIEREAFTERARE 765
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MOF+=_HA=+—H 4,375

The analysis of carrying amounts of investment property is as

BREWEZREESESTET

follows:
The Group
xEH
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T
In Taiwan neE
Freehold land KA ZERE T3 4,375 -
Fair value measurement of investment property REWMFEZ A FEFZ
(i) Fair value hierarchy ()  RFEER

The investment property is measured at Level 3
valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were
no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The Group's investment property was revalued as at
31 December 2014. The valuations were carried out
by an independent firm of surveyors, APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's directors have discussed with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

REYMERE-BRHENE-

RBE-T-—mF+-A=+—
B2 ML mein.

AEBZREMER _T—NF
ToA=+—HETEMR -HEHR
BRI EMEKEERHE
BARRARETT  BEH LG EY
EE R MEERNBOMEE
Ko EREP MR FERSE A S
ETRER  AEEEECREAE
et im b E R R EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment property

(Continued)

(ii)  Information about Level 3 fair value

—OE+ZA=t—HLFE

17. #BEWME (]8)
REWEZ DT EE ()

(i) BEE=ERFETEZEH

measurements
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
{5 (B 5 i AUERBAE #E
Investment property Freehold land Direct comparison approach  Property-specific (20%) to
- Taiwan adjusting rate 5%
?ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%iiﬂz BELLLEUX VIS TE B R (20%)£5%
The fair value of investment property located in Taiwan REEZREME 2 A TFETERERE

is determined using direct comparison approach by
reference to the market price of comparable properties
and adjusted for location and land size of the

properties.

(iii) During the year, the Group's investment property
amounting to RMB4,375,000 (2013:nil) was held

under trust arrangements.

e

HWEOZEE C2ERHRLEYE 2T
B YRYEZIE N EmREEY

(i) RERN AEEREETLHERE
2R EME A ANREA4,375,0007T

ZT-=F:F)o

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML B E
The Group The Company
35H b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-mE —T-=F —E—mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®TT ARET T AR®TT ARET T
Trademarks and licences  EEREFATE
Cost: BE:
At 1 January and K—A—BRk
31 December +-A=1+—H 19 19 5 5
Accumulated amortisation: R :
At 1 January and R—A—Hk
31 December +-A=1+—-H 17 17 3 3
Carrying amounts: IRE{E :
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 2 2 2 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BT R P ot

—E-MOFE+-A=t+—HILFE

19. HERBAOFEHF ARG Z
MERE

The Group
w5KH
2014 2013
—Z=—QmE =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, EEEs BrETEZ
at fair value Aifﬁ
Established in Taiwan (note (i) R E R (BFEx)) 35,917 40,558
Structured deposits, at fair value T I EEG))
(note (ii)) 10,000 -
45,917 40,558
Notes: B EE -

(ii)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEEIRIEM)) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on 17
July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and 4 July
2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross receipt of
each funeral services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds and
unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed by fund managers
of these financial institutions in Taiwan. The mutual funds
and unit trusts comprise a basket of financial assets including
local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity
securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are presented
within “operating activities” as part of changes in working
capital in the consolidated statement of cash flows. The
Group has obtained a net realised and unrealised gain of
RMB236,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB2,386,000). The net realised and unrealised gain of the
above financial assets are recorded in “other net loss” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The financial assets above offer the Group the opportunity
for return through fair value gain. They have no fixed
maturity and coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2014, structured deposits represented
capital protected deposits with notional amount of
RMB10,000,000 (2013: Nil) which carries interest at 0%
to 3.9%. Management has the option of disposing the
structured deposits at any time by paying a management fee.

The structured deposits are designated as fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

(ii)

BER-_ZZ_FtA+tHEXE
IR -—_EE=F+A—HB K=
+tF L ANBE—FBITZEER
EEEEH AEBER G E S B
BERR=ZZEZT= Etﬁ +—RA%
RN REBEREZOBABE Y
T5%IEREFEE -

EREERENGBZEEREME
HTHREARLMER Y HeE
BEHR BEEEGHREAEMH &
FHBEEMANK  BRERMRINEE
WIRITHE A IEAE R AN RRT
EmzEHRBAES

EEARAFEFABRZUBEE
REABeRERKEERIRE
N EAREEESEYH Mo -BEZ
T—NE+—A=+—RHIEFE XK
%Z%%%/\Eﬁzzsaooo%(:;—z
F: ARW2,386,0007T) 7 B #IR &
& iﬁﬁruﬂz/\oikﬁﬁﬁéiza*“
BERERFRENGAERRE
fhEsiE %58 ] B8R -

PR BEERARERMEBNF
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—ZF—WNF+-A=+—HILFE
20. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS 20. A R R F

The Group
KM=

2014 2013

—Z—mEF —g—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T

Development and formation costs B2 & ok 37 AKX
— burial plots under development —DAHIHE 2 R EEM

for sale 14,860 6,525

The development and formation costs the represent
development costs incurred for burial plots construction in a
cemetery site which will be completed for sale by burial plot
and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying value of a freehold land
in Vietnam included in development and formation costs is
RMB4,782,000 (2013: RMB2,388,000).

B3 R ARSI AR AN TR R — SR 2 B SE K
’iu“jEZ%ﬂEZF'ﬁ?EﬁJZK jﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁi
'''''' BIRFEME T ZBIRESIR

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 —#RN
MR ZKAEREL I Z REES AR
BN KA £ A AREEA4,782,000

T(ZZTE—=%: AK%2,388,000
JL) °
21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
The Group
EEM

2014 2013
—ZE—QmEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AER®TX AREF T
Merchandises for resale BEEMN 569 637
Completed burial plots BRIENR 173 -
Marble stones KA 61 -
803 637

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised
as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted to
RMB6,996,000 (2013: RMB9,572,000) in the year.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

22. 5K HEKHRET

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company
E 3L ] b /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—mE —ZE-=F —Z—mE —E-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT AR%TR ARBFT
Trade receivables JEW B Z IR
(note (c) and (g)) (M R()) 244 20 = -
Other receivables (note (d))  E B YA (KT7E(d)) 6,418 6,552 - -
Less: allowance for wREBEERE
impairment loss (M7Ee))
(note (e)) (1,009) (1,009) - -
5,409 5,543 - -
Amounts due from FEUHT B 2 Rl ZUE
subsidiaries (note (h)) (FF5E(h)) - - 111,646 111,983
Less: allowance for BOREBERE
impairment loss (FEEG))
(note (i) - - (34,540) (37,979)
- - 77,106 74,004
Loans and receivables ER W RIE 5,653 5,563 77,106 74,004
Deposits and prepayments & & & FB R HE
(note (f)) (BsE(h)) 60,373 64,430 709 695
66,026 69,993 77,815 74,699
Representing: =K
Current BIEA 63,326 66,293 77,815 74,699
Non-current JEENHA 2,700 3,700 - -
66,026 69,993 77,815 74,699
Notes: B =E
(@) Al of the loans and receivables are expected to be recovered (@) FEERREUFIBFEAR —FRK
within one year and prepayments are expected to be B MIEFNRIBEBAR —FRNER R
recognised as expense within one year. Xz
(b) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (b) ZIREMEYREZEEREHEER
approximate their fair values. FERE-
() No allowance for doubtful debts was recorded for both years. () HPMEFEBES AREREH B

Trade receivables with the following analysis by age presented
based on the date of sales of goods or service rendered as at
the end of the reporting period:

WE ZERFRNREARRIEEE MK
REIRM A Z REDHTWT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZEZ T —NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES5 R EMEUTHRIE (F)

(9]

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Moz : (&)
(Continued) o (&
The Group
%M
2014 2013
—Z—mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
0 to 180 days 0£180H 187 20
181 to 365 days 181%365H 57 -
244 20

(d)

The average credit period on sales, except for sale of burial
plots, granted to customers is 45 days (2013:45 days).

For sale of burial plots, the customers can elect to make
payment on a lump sum basis or settle the contract sum by
up to a maximum of 48 monthly instalments. The instalment
receivables will be discounted at an appropriate effective
interest rate.

Management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
32(a).

Included in the balance is an amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of RMB3,616,000 (2013: RMB3,526,000), of which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as it relates to a wide range of debtors for whom there was
no recent history of default. Management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the non-
impaired balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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F¥32(a) °

BERNEBRAZRIAREYR—HES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ¥ 5 R HEMEWHRIE (1)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

()

BifeE: (48D

Impairment loss of other receivables (e) HMEKRREFZHESR
Impairment loss of other receivables are recorded using an HAth FE WK IE 2 R E B8 0 (0 R B E
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery BRACHR - MW AR R B E M ZRIE 2 A
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment losses W B RR B RIBR S - A EIE R T - RE
are written off against other receivables directly. EiEe EE B EMERGRIAME-
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss WEBEREEH
The Group
KA
2014 2013
—Z—mE —ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TTR ARETF T
At 1 January ®—A—H 1,009 930
Impairment loss recognised B HERREEE - 486
Reversal of impairment loss BEREERE - (407)
At 31 December B+ZA=+—A8 1,009 1,009
As at 31 December 2014, other receivables of the Group RZE—WOF+ZA=+—H K&
amounting to RMB1,009,000 (2013: RMB1,009,000) were E 2 H A fEUg 518 A R #51,009,0007T
individually determined to be impaired. The individually (ZZ—=%: AR¥1,009,0007T) &
impaired receivables were due from other debtors with B TE H B R o HH BR MR RIRUE 2 FE
financial difficulties. An impairment loss RMB486,000 were W kIR Ty R AE W TS IR B 2 Ho (& 7
recognised in the prior year. ARB - BE—FANRBREEEA
R #486,0007T °
Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits paid ) FFARERENFKERSARERE

for funeral parlours and funeral services centres, prepaid
hire charge of funeral parlours and funeral services centres,
prepaid agency commission for funeral services deeds and
prepayment for purchase of marble stones of RMB2,700,000
(2013: RMB3,700,000), RMB10,486,000 (2013:
RMB10,185,000), RMB27,944,000 (2013: RMB29,664,000)
and RMB16,289,000 (2013: RMB16,423,000) respectively.

ELRBEREP LI NZES B
EEMBERBPLZENERAX
HARBEBEREZOZBHR
BAeMBHABEREBAZERA
R#2,700,000t (ZZE—=F: AR
#3,700,0007T) + A R #10,486,000
T (ZE—=7F: AR %¥10,185,000
7T) ~ AR #527,944,0007T (—ZE—=
F£: AR #29,664,00070) M AR
16,289,000t (— T —=F: ARK
16,423,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. B RAEMEYKHRIE ()

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) st : (&)
(g) Trade receivables that are not impaired (90 EEBEZEWBREZHER
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither W AR B sk RAR AR IRE 2 B E
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as SERZERRDITAOT :
follows:
The Group
34|
2014 2013
—E—mEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ETF T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 180 HA SR (E 55 -
Past due but not impaired BEE R E
Less than 1 month past due w R —1E A 30 20
1 to 3 months past due BE—EAZE=@A 64 -
Over 3 months past due w e = A A 95 -
189 20
244 20
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to 3 488 380 Y SR (E 2 MR TR R T
various customers for whom there was no recent history of HMiEREHRZZEEFER-
default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to BERE I R E 2 FEUGRIE RS 7 &
independent customers that have a good track record with FAEM ZEEFEALERRITMN
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes TR - RBBILR ERERR
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these BARZEERELRERE R
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit REEBXRUBENLE) MzELH
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. BRI AR AR 72 A BB B o 7N 52 [ 3 A
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. MRS EBRFEENERRD-
(h)  The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (h)y ZEH#EHHEER 2SNREKREX
demand. B&-
(i) Impairment loss of amounts due from subsidiaries (i) EBEMEBATRERERE
Movement in the allowance for impairment loss REBEREEZY
The Company
FATH
2014 2013
—E—-mEF ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR¥ETFTT
At 1 January R—A—H 37,979 29,189
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 2,610 9,817
Written off upon disposal of WA E — KB A R
a subsidiary 88 (6,975) -
Effect of foreign currency INBIER 2R 2%
exchange differences 926 (1,027)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 34,540 37,979

During the year ended 31 December 2014, several
subsidiaries had incurred operating losses. After reviewing
the financial performance and financial position of these
subsidiaries and taking into account the current market
environment, the directors consider that impairment loss of
RMB2,610,000 (2013: RMB9,817,000) on the amounts due
from these subsidiaries should be made. The impairment loss
were recognised in the Company’s statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILtFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. & RBReERD

The Group
x=5E
2014 2013
—ZT—MmF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITERFERS 109,086 122,820
Cash and cash equivalents FEaMBIRRRRES
in the consolidated statement HeREaRNZHE M
of financial position and ReEED
the consolidated statement of
cash flows 109,086 122,820
The Company
r. /N
2014 2013
—Z—QmEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITERFHERS 14,566 30,102
Cash and cash equivalents in the MBARTAZRE R
statement of financial position ReEEY 14,566 30,102

The interest rates on the cash at bank ranged from 0.01%
10 0.88% (2013: 0.01% to 0.88%) per annum.

At 31 December 2014, cash at bank and on hand of the
Group of RMB9,079,000 (2013: RMB10,274,000) were
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

RITIRE 2 FF=ENF0.01%=0.88%
ZE-=F:001%%0.88%) °

R-E—MNFE+_-_A=1+—8 AK&EH
2 R1T R FEEIR S A AKH9,079,000
T(ZE—=%: AR™10,274,000
L) UAREFETFERA T E 2R
1T ARME H NS BIRIE P B HNEE
GBI M 4ETE - EERNEEE R T
1Te
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 HE&RB&EEY ()

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

REBEARRZRITRFBRE 2R
E{ENA T EHEHE:

currencies:
The Group The Company
35H b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mE —T-=F —E—mE —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFTT AR®TTT AREFIT
us$ T 801 3,141 438 869
HK$ BT 616 760 49 41
RMB ARE 26,222 39,422 14,079 29,147
NTD Haw 81,086 79,260 - 45
Euro ("EUR") BT ([B]) 8 7 = -
VND HiEE 353 230 - -
109,086 122,820 14,566 30,102
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B REMBESRIE
The Group The Company
¥5H XN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mE —T-=F —Z-mE —T-=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T AR®TT AREFTT
Trade payables (note (c)) FEHE SRR (M) 1,714 1,717 = -
Accruals and other payables  FE&HFRIE I H Al S 5008 6,482 7,426 1,567 3,140
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE P B A & 78
(note (d)) (P &E(d)) - - 18,287 25,314
Financial liabilities measured 1R S5 EL A5t E B
at amortised cost gsaE 8,196 9,143 19,854 28,454
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BSRHEMMBEMSRIE (&)

(Continued)
Notes: B =
(@)  All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled (@ FMEESHRHEMEMNFKIEERAR—F
within one year or are repayable on demand. BB ERNR L ZRREE-
(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables by EBFRHEMENFIEZRDERELAD
approximate their fair values. FAEAE °
(¢ The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, based (© UNUTAEENESERNREARZK
on the date of receipt of goods or services received, at the IE Mok B 2 BRER D 1T -
end of the reporting period:
The Group
x%E
2014 2013
—Z—@mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARBTIT
0 to 30 days 0%30R 818 679
31 days to 90 days 31H£90H 445 375
Over 90 days 90H M E 451 663
1,714 1,717
(d)  The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (d %g:;%ﬁffﬁﬁ# B RARR
demand. EREEE-
25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 25. Rk IR
The Group
xEME
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®Tx ARETF T
Advance payments from customers for:  FF R TN EZ
TERTRUA ¢
— funeral service deeds (note (a)) —REEREEL
(HtzE()) 89,071 94,480
— burial plots under development —HERE R
and marble stones (note (b)) RNIEA
(FtE(b)) 1,519 1,340
— deferred maintenance income —IRERE ARTEULA 39 -
90,629 95,820
Representing: B
Current BV HA 90,590 95,820
Non-current JERNER 39 -
90,629 95,820

TELEBEERRLE T -EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—F

2 MRt

25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (”Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice of
the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed Holders
can elect to make payment on a lump sum basis or settle
the outstanding amount of the funeral services deeds by
up to a maximum of 120 monthly instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering these
services, after having taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the Deed Holders.
Amounts received from funeral services deeds sold are
recorded as receipts in advance. When the Deed Holders have
defaulted payment for two months and do not pay back the
defaulted amounts after the Group’s not less than 30-day's
demand notice, the funeral services deeds would be regarded
as lapsed and a minimum of 20% of the total sum of the
funeral services deeds or the instalments paid, whichever
is lower, will be forfeited as income. The Deed Holders can
request for funeral services or terminate the funeral services
deeds at any time after the funeral services deeds are sold.
Accordingly, receipts in advance is classified as current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEERIEH]) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on 17
July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and 4 July
2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross receipt of
each funeral services deed entered into after 31 July 2003
in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies. As at 31
December 2014, the Group has deposited RMB32,963,000
(2013: RMB37,760,000) in three financial institutions in
Taiwan.

The Group recognised a net gain on termination/lapse of
funeral services deeds of RMB35,000 (2013: RMB155,000)
in “other net loss” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
marble stones under instalment plans and such amount
will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue
recognition criteria are met (note 2(q)).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITEE
The Group
.3
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TRT ARBEF T
Bank borrowings, secured RITEE DR
Current liabilities mEBE
— Portion of term loan from —R—FREBHEED
bank due for repayment WITEREREH
within 1 year 594 602
Non-current liabilities FmEBBE
— Portion of term loan from —-R—FRIPEEN
bank due for repayment RITEBHERIT S
after 1 year 7,460 8,309
Total Bt 8,054 8,911
At 31 December 2014, bank borrowings were due for RZE—NF+=—A=+—8 R17&
repayment, which are based on the scheduled repayment SRR THE (ARS8 ERn=®
dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, as NFTETERMTEEEE B BRI E)EE
follows:
The Group
*T5E
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Within 1 year —FR 594 602
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRERWEA 606 613
After 2 years but within 5 years RAFEERAFNA 1,887 1,910
After 5 years REF& 4,967 5,786
7,460 8,309
8,054 8,911

TELEBEEFRLE T -DFFR
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All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans and does not consider it probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment
so long as the Group management continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s and the
Company'’s of liquidity risk are set out in note 32(b). As
at 31 December 2014, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2013: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

At 31 December 2014, the banking facilities of the Group
and the Company are secured by a personal guarantee to
the extent of RMB31,089,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000)
(2013: RMB30,318,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000)) from
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, the controlling shareholder and director of
the Company. Such banking facilities were not utilised for
both years.
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. SRITEE (&)
At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company has the RZE—NF+ZA=+—H £&H
following undrawn bank borrowing facilities: RARBRBULNTRERRITEERFEE
B
The Group and the Company
FEERFATF
2014 2013
—ZT—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Variable-rate F B FI & 31,089 30,318
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the effective interest RZE—WFRERZZT—=F+=H
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows: =+—H BITEECEBRMENT:
The Group
.3
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBEF T
Variable-rate F B FI 1.90% 1.90%
Bank borrowings of RMB8,054,000 (2013: RMBS,911,000), RITEE ARES,054,00000 (= —=
denominated in NTD were secured by the freehold land F: AR¥8,911,0007T) 5 AT & B 5T
and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying amount of B WARBEZKAEE L RIEF
RMB17,462,000 (2013: RMB16,758,000) (note 15(f)). AR 4218 /A AR %17,462,0007T (= F
— =% : AR%16,758,0007T ) E 4K 17
(HIFE15()) °
27. OTHER LOAN 27. Rt
The Group
T5H
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREEF T
Current liabilities mENAE
— Other loan, secured —HmBEAER - 106
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+T—HILFE

27.

28.

OTHER LOAN (Continued)

The other loan was carried at amortised cost, denominated
in NTD and does not contain a repayment on demand
clause.

The other loan, which was repayable by monthly
instalments, was granted from EFRE 2R, who is an
independent third party.

As at 31 December 2013, the other loan of RMB106,000
was secured by the freehold land of the Group with carrying
amount of RMB3,724,000 (note 15(f)), with interest charged
at a rate of 6.96% and with maturity date of 21 June 2014.
The other loan was fully repaid in the current year.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

27.

28.

Htgwk (#8)
EA B SR B SR SIE - IR A
SHE R SME AR E R ER IR -

HtER (A BN BBILE=
HERBERE L -

RN_E—=ZF+-"A=+—H ' AR¥E
106,0007C W EL b & KT LABRAEIE & A
R #3,724,0007T U A &£ B 7 K A ¥
+ i EHE 3 (B 5E15(f)) » I $26.96/E
AR E BEE AT —NF A
T+-A-EMEFRERAFERHIE
;‘Eo

REMBERRARAZFHFR

() HAEMBRAEXAZARKRIEA

financial position represents: &
The Group
*xEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREETT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,748 506
Provision for the year FERE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ — BB EER 1,141 8438
Over-provision for prior years 38 & /2 fBE8 B 1
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ —FREI > EFRE/H (532) -
Income tax paid during the year £ RN B AT 154 (1,147) (6)
Income tax refunded FHNBEEAER
during the year 242 383
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 78 B (1) 17
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 1,451 1,748
Representing: &
Tax recoverable A e IR (8) (40)
Tax payable FEIBEIE 1,459 1,788
1,451 1,748

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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28. .?r%%amuﬁuﬁmszsn

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a place
of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate up to 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong,
a preferential rate of 5% is applied. On 22 February
2008, the State Administration of Taxation approved
Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to which dividend
distributions out of retained earnings of foreign
investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will
be exempted from withholding income tax.

As all of the Group's foreign-invested enterprises
are directly and wholly owned by Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is applicable
to the calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB16,772,000 (2013: RMB15,326,000) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

BT R i ot

—E-WEFT-A=+—HLHFE

(b) REWBDIELBIREE

HM-ZZT\F—HF—H RESP
B EFERE  WIEEF B
SRER A & FE M B S R R B A L Bk
BREEEMMEEERANIEE
BB AE AR B K ST B ER A S E 2
FRZIEERGE BARSEE
A (FlEREFEZRE )
5 EI0% 2 B R @%%Wﬁo
TRBEBEMEKL 2 REE - TR
AZzBEFRAE% BRHIER
BRZZEENF-_A=-+=8#
/BT R (2008)F 157 - #E UL - INE
EMR-_TTLFEF A=+ —
BRI ZREBBFAELBREDIK -
1SR BT TS -

ERNAEEBINECESBE
EEEMRIONBEAREES
EA AEHEHBNBR 2 ERRE
%waﬁﬁ$@ﬁﬂ%%$%%
REIZREEER  WEHEZS 5
FITKATRERA AT RAR SRR +
KAZETBREREDIRRE &
ﬂBM%§H2LLmEAE%
16,772,000 (ZF—=F: AR
ﬁ%aﬂawwwﬁm%ﬁ
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(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(Continued)

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act of
Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption is
not applicable for investment in foreign profit-seeking
enterprise, which is subject to income tax at the rate
of 17%.

As one of the Group's subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly-
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan, a rate
of 17% is applicable to the calculation of the income
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of the retained profits of RMB5,926,000 (2013:
RMB8,177,000) as the Company controls the dividend
policy of this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of Withholding
Rates for Various Incomes issued by Ministry of
Finance of Republic of China, the net dividends or
profit distributed to a profit-seeking enterprise having
its head office outside the territory of the Republic
of China from investment in an enterprise within the
territory of the Republic of China shall be withheld at a
rate of 20% of the amount distributed.

As one of the Group’s subsidiary operates within the
territory of the Republic of China having its head
office outside the territory of the Republic of China,
a rate of 20% is applicable to the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of RMB205,000
(2013: RMB973,000) as the Company controls the
dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

28. ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬂiﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬂ

(b) REWRDELBIREE (F)

B8 REFERBEMERES
Fa2E - LR B A EEHNEF
PERKRENE 5 —H 2 b
EMEFHREFEXBHRET
FER BART AR - B
BRIl TERNEINEEFIRE
MIE SR ENAEHRTES
17% °

MRAEEEF—EKBAQ A
BINEEFIGE WhH—BES
EEMA YN BAREREE
B GEMSHNERNEA
17% ° AN Q B HI % M B A
Bl Z R BBUR - B T RZ SR T
RRATRER AT AR R 5K » Ml
KRG EVBBRERREDIRRE &
FEAFI N ZELEHBARE
5,926,000 (ZZE—=F: AE
#8,177,0007T ) 1 B -

aE  RigHERBEMBEIRM
MEBEMBNBXREERME A
RMERRNPERBRIINNE
MEEFKRERPERBEARN
EEMESHRE SR FE
B IBIR P IR SR 20 % 1 h 1R
e

MRANEEE M EQRE
FERBSANSEBBHEERR
RAEERBBIN FFEREEN
i 89 38 F B R A20% ° B R AR
FHEHZM B AR 2 BB ERR
I B HE T 3% & 0m MR K R BE R A]
BAREDIR » 8RR A B 15 5R
KD ERBHEFFAETFIMHZ
PRI A AR #205,0007T (=F
— =4 AR#¥973,0007T) 1EH
B
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(0

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB23,764,000 (2013: RMB22,290,000)
available for offset against future profits. Other than
tax losses amounting to RMB16,932,000 (2013:
RMB16,708,000) that would be expiring from 5 years
through 10 years pursuant to the relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the
remainder at the end of the reporting period can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

BT R i ot

—E-WEFT-A=+—HLHFE

28. .}'n-%ié)ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂiWZFﬁﬁ?ﬁ

(C) *%@ﬁwLLﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
RZZE—WmF+=-—A=+—8"
RE @Zﬂi%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂé AR
23,764,000 (ZZE—=F: AR
#22,290,0007T ) TﬁH LA §8 2R 2Rk
A BRARIEF R MR A EK
B K38 E ¥ RSE 105 B Hi 6
FRIEE 18 A R#16,932,0007T (=
T—=%: AR%16,708,0007T)
G AR BIR 2 ISR EB 5 AT £ IR
G o AR IR FI| 2 SRR
TER - MU E LR EE B M ERIE

SHARE CAPITAL 29. =&
No. of shares Amount
;218 4= &
RMB’000
ARBTT
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREENAETLCE ﬁ
At 1 January 2013, RZZE—=F—HA—
31 December 2013 and e ﬁ
31 December 2014 :+ Bk -_ZF—NF
+-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2013, WZZE—=F—HA—8"
31 December 2013 and —E—=F+=A
31 December 2014 =t+—HRZZ—NF
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LTEREE ABRETRREMEIR 2K

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual

assets.

BRARNRARBBRA® L ERE

—RETRR AL BRAARRZ
BIEEMSHZERSEN-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—F

30. RESERVES

(a)

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

—MOFE+_A=+—HILFE

30. f&fm

(a)

AEEHES

i Fa =105

D)8

FREHHEINGAERE
B -ARBRESEY 2 FIE

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FERZEHFFHINNOT
in the Company'’s individual components of reserves
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company b /4|
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Uk E
-1 ¥4
BipRE R iR 15 £ O RitER ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 220,633 (27,113) 7,720 (74,979) 126,261
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (22,289) (22,289)
Exchange differences HERBRREEL
on translation of ERER
financial statements - (5,660) - - (5,660)
Total comprehensive loss AEEL2ABELE
for the year - (5,660) - (22,289) (27,949)
Equity-settled share-based AR 1 ??z’lﬁ @ﬁ
transactions ARt - - 402 - 402
Lapse of share BRI BRI LN
options granted - - (118) 118 -
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+-A=+—-H 220,633 (32,773) 8,004 (97,150) 98,714
At 1 January 2014 RZE-—NF-R— 220,633 (32,773) 8,004 (97,150) 98,714
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - (4,415) (4,415)
Exchange differences BWEMBRREEL
on translation of EiER
financial statements - 4,231 - - 4,231
Total comprehensive loss AEELHBELE
for the year - 4,231 - (4,415) (184)
Equity-settled share-based REEERD 7
transactions AR5 - - 1 - 1
Lapse of share ERHERERN
options granted - - (193) 193 -
At 31 December 2014 T-MEF
+ZA=1+—H 220,633 (28,542) 7,812 (101,372) 98,531
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal amount of share capital
and amounts received on issue of shares.

Under the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in relation
to the acquisition of Bau Shan during the group
reorganisation in 2007. The merger reserve of
the Group represents the difference between
aggregate net asset value of Bau Shan acquired
and the consideration paid for the acquisition of
Bau Shan pursuant to the group reorganisation.

BT R i ot

—E-EE+-—A=+—ALER
30. fEfi§ (#8)

(b) REMERAZ
(I) ﬁ/ /E
Bt s (B HE AN (B K 31T
Btn BWRIE 2 Z 58 -

BERESBEERARA(ZE
TMFEBIIR)  ARAZ
BhaBESADIETAR
AR ER - MR BEERIR AR
EBHEBANRARENRN
EBEAEHAEERBREFRE
%MQHELEO

(i) BOHEE
BHREEIN _ETLFE
TEESHEBRMEEEL
BRAT A RZESIE T 2 %75
BOHFMESL -KAEE M S G
FEEMRECBILZEE
FEARREBEEEEMARM
BREELDNREZEZSR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) ~ Statutory reserve

(iv)

According to the applicable laws and regulations
in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their net profits
after taxation, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in Taiwan,
to a non-distributable reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches the registered capital of
the respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to owners but after offset the
previous years' losses, if any. During the year,
RMB561,000 (2013: Nil) has been transferred
to this reserve as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
in Taiwan, transfer after offset previous years’
losses.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate at least 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined under the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable
to companies established in the PRC, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of dividends to owners. The non-distributable
reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of
the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after
such issue is not less than 25% of its registered
capital. The non-distributable reserve fund is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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30. i (48)

(b) REBHEERAZE

(iii)

(iv)

(#8&)
EERE
BRESEMNERBEZER
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NElZ BB RA R
TS ERERRBAF
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EREBEHREZEE A
ZEMERAIE - EIL R
WMZL%MMWm%ﬁA

SR AE SR (BRI A
FEBE (HE)EER- m
FR KB EHEBIE
BRI BRA BEERT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

(o)

(v)

(vi)

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set their
reserve fund according to the respective Charter.
Under the Charter of the Vietnam subsidiaries,
they are required to transfer 5% to 15% of
profit after tax to set up the reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 10% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises.

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for freehold land
and buildings held for own use in note 2(e) and
is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(r).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to eligible participants of the Group
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(n).

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to owners
of the Company was RMB119,261,000 (2013:
RMB123,483,000).

30. | (48)

(b) EBEMHEERAZE(E)

(iv) ZEEEFE (&)
RIBEMEARE AEBZ
MENBARIRESEN
NRERRIFHES BRI
MERBARMARER
®EBEES%E15%2 B
ReasMEi@mEes 522
BRRECERBLE G
MER10% 4 IE -

V) EEEHFE
AABERIMESHRFH
5 AR 4R BB RE2(e) T R
RAKAERLRFHERR
BFRMZETBREER
A DK ©

(i) [EZEHE
EHREEREMERREIE
PR ERIT MR TES 2
E W = 2 o 2B TR IRHT
2N 2 ETBUR R
o

(vii) HRt7 BEREZF
PABR 0 I B 2 S B (i e
R IR B FE2(n)BE LA B £ £ B
MR 2 G 5T BER P HER
ZETAEEEERZEE
Z BB SERTRITE AR
A RFHEMAK-

(0 HnIkf#EE
RZZE-—WmF+—A=+—8"
AR TARRRHEEAZFE
4858 A A R#119,261,0000T (=
T—=F: AR¥123,483,000
JL) e
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
owners, return capital to owners, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is total liabilities divided by total assets.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30. i (48)

(d)

EXER

AEBMEEEARZ BRERERAE
SERLIFEKE KM AERA
wREHRE A EMERR S ES
A - WA FFIRARE AN LR

REFBLRBENGERE  AREE
HEMREBAINZBEESHE
RIEERTHERAAN  BITHBMO K
HEEENRDERE-

MEMFRAR 1 NEENE
ERELEREREARAMELE.
BEABLHERZBABRNEE
EtH AREEEREERREL
RERFNEIEKF -R-_F—OF
R—Z—=f+-"A=+—HZ

BEBBLENT:

2014 2013

—Z—mF —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Total liabilities wam 108,338 115,768
Total assets BEE 283,095 302,388
Gearing ratio BEEAMRGLE 38.27% 38.28%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 31. #EigiozHEIR

CATEGORIES
The Group The Company
*5E NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=f% —E2-mE —E-=f
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
UN: & ARETFT ARBTR AR#ETTT
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets designated BTEARELTFERA
as at fair value through Ba MBEE
profit or loss 45,917 40,558 - -
Loans and receivables ERRERGR
(including cash and (BERER
cash equivalents) ReZEM) 114,739 128,383 91,672 104,106
Financial liabilities HE&R
Amortised cost BHEMAR 16,250 18,160 19,854 28,454

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MHERBETERRMEIAZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFEE

INSTRUMENTS

The Group and the Company have exposure to the credit HAEBENEAQNGZHETEEB A
risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial BEEEERR RBESRABR LTS
instruments. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are J\ B o T 3CEL B Rl R 7% B R B 2 R
set out below. The management manages and monitors R-EREEEMERZERAR  AME
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are 1R N B K A U BR EUE & 8 i o

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Credit risk (a) FERMR
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will FEERREXSHABERES

default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.

WEEMEBHAEEHRMBIE
Rz  AEEERRA—EEZHR
ARERZUNRHRERGRR
EHm BR (ER) - ERR
HRZEO® K M BERRER -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as the
receivable for each individual customer is not
significant and the Group generally offer credit
period of 45 days to customers. The Group does
not obtain collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

In respect of other receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as for 64%
(2013: 64%) of the total loans and receivables
is due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary.

In order to minimise risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major debtor periodically. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the debtor
operates. The Group does not require collateral
in respect of its financial assets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014

OFHE ()

(a)

FERRE (&

(i)

ﬁ%@%ﬁZﬁ%ﬁ%%m
+ P B U 1 Bl BR A%
EﬁZ%EﬁKEﬁvH$
EBE—RAEFIEM4ISHZ
EEH HEERREHR
Ko REBWEHREFEE
EREFETR-

REMEWETRMS A%
EmH s EERREEZS
BEBAZENERZE R
WMEBKR AEERERK
FEWGRTEBEE 264% (= F
—=F:64% )y W —FH
I EHmENB AR ZIEE
BERFEMAES TEFP
EERR -

EERERE EEER
ﬂmﬁfﬂ KRS 2%
EEERBIIFEER
BB AR B RIEEZE
BHE DEBESEEEH
ANHEIT RSB ERES
ANBRIZEREE N WHRE
EFAFEER REFAL
ERTRAEIRIE ZER K
EEVESKREMBEE
IR AL G o



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company's credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from the
subsidiaries. About 30%, 36% and 11%
(2013: 20%, 27% and 11%) of the loans and
receivables of the Company at the end of the
reporting period are due from subsidiaries
engaged in investment holding in Hong
Kong, providing funeral services in Taiwan
and providing funeral services in Vietnam
respectively.

The Company reviews the recoverable amounts
of individual debts at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The majority of the Group’s investments
are financial assets designated as at FVTPL
which include mutual funds and unit trusts
established in Taiwan and structured deposits.
Given the high credit standing of investment
counterparties, management does not expect
any investment counterparties to fail to meet
their obligations.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with good credit
rating.

BT R P ot

—E-WEFT-A=+—HLHFE

32. MERREERMBIAZ
AF(E ()

(a) EERM (E&)

(i) AXRFZEERBREZR
BEWHE QR RE R
HEHKR Zliﬁﬁi%o%«
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AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(vi) Except for the financial guarantees given by
the Company as set out in note 38, the Group
or the Company does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 22.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company’s board approval. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on its liquid funds as a
significant source of liquidity.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's and the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current rates
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company are required to pay.

The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings and
other loan is prepared based on the scheduled
repayment dates.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32  H¥ERBEERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(#E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESER (&)
The Group xEMH
2014
~E-mE

More than More than Total

1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount

gl-% RS SHRER
REX R—%R BOREE BIREF BRIF HEREAR IREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTRI  ARRTR  ARRTRE  ARRTR

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FEATAE ST K& &

Trade payables ERESER - 1,714 - - - 1,714 1,714
Accruals and other payables B R
ERFIE 6,482 - - - - 6,482 6,482
Bank borrowings BITRE - 742 742 2,225 5,316 9,025 8,054
6,482 2,456 742 2,225 5316 17221 16,250
2013
—F-=F

More than More than Total

1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount

BB—F BBmE RORER
REX R=%n  ESRRE  EIREF BRLF RERELE RAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARNTRE ARMTRT ARMTRT  ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities 3474 8 H5 & &
Trade payables ENESER - 1717 - - - 1,717 1717

Accruals and other payables et B RE
R F0R 7,426 - - - - 7,426 7,426
Bank borrowings RIS - 765 765 2,9 6,249 10,075 8911
Other loan HHEH - 108 - - - 108 106
7,426 2,590 765 2,29 6,249 19326 18,160
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHRMEIAEZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

LFHE ()

(b) REEZER (&)

The Company b /N
2014
Z2-mF
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Bé-F BERE BHARE
REX R—FR BIRAE BIREE BRIF ReRERE EEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR AE®TR AERTR AERTR AE®TR AERTR AERTR
Non-derivative financial liabllities ~ 3F4T£ 8158 &
Accruals and other payables A FEREM
BT3B 1,567 = = = = 1,567 1,567
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBARZE 18,287 - - - - 18,287 18,287
19,854 - - - - 19,854 19,854
2013
—F-=%
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BB HBRE RRRIR
REX R—FR BORME BIREF BRLF RENELE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTFT
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3473158 &
Accruals and other payables S FEREM
R 3,140 - - - - 3,140 3,140
Amounts due to subsidaries ERBRRE 25314 - - - - 25314 25314
28,454 - - - - 28,454 28,454
Financial quarantee issued: BRLABER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ SAERE
(note 38) (Mi338) - - - - - - 1951

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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32. MERREERMBIALZ

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(9

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Company
could be forced to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on the banking facilities were not utilised for both
years, the Company had no amount payable under
the arrangement. The amount payable is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to borrowings at variable rates. The Group did
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
debt obligations.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly
concentrates on fluctuation of market interest rate
arise from the Group's borrowings.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32  MERBEERMEIAZ
DFE(HE)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Interest rate risk (Continued)
()  The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group's borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

(o #
(i)

REk (&)
TRAFAKERRERR
MEEMENIER

The Group
5@
2014 2013
—E2-mF —T-=F

Effective Effective

interest interest

Note RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)

ERfE BIRF &

M=z AR®TR (%) AREFIT (%)

Variable rate FEEH

borrowings

Bank borrowings RITEE 26 8,054 1.90% 8,911 1.90%

Other loan H At & 5% 27 - - 106 6.96%

8,054 9,017
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BEE T

The Executive Directors performed sensitivity
analysis with estimation of a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points and considered that
the impact is not significant and accordingly to
sensitivity analysis presented.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Executive Directors
monitor the Group’s foreign currency exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through bank deposit denominated in a foreign
currency that is a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk
is USD, RMB and HK$. The Company is exposed
to currency risk primarily through amount due
from/(to) subsidiaries, cash and cash equivalents
and other payables dominated in NTD, RMB and
HKS.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company'’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

32. BERREERMBIRZ
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHRMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥RK (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) FrE#ZEEEE (&)
The Group xEH

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

FEHZMERR (MARKIIT)

2014 2013
2-mE —E-=F
uss RMB HKS Us§ RMB HKS
ESH AB% BT e ARE o
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
T T T Fi i i
Cash and cash equivalents RERFLEED 183 17,143 50 1,49 29,148 Iy
Trade and other receivables BHREMENTE - - - - - -
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE - - (1,316) - - (1,464)
Net exposure arising from recognised BREERAEMELL
assets and liabilities Bl 183 17,143 (1,266) 1,49 29,148 (1,422)
The Company b. 2/ |
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)
FEHZSHMERMR (UAR®IIR)
2014 2013
Z3-mE —F-=
NTD RMB HK$ NTD RMB HK$
na% AR% BT HaE ARE o
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
T T T T Fr T
Amounts due from subsidiaries EUH B RIF B - 3,026 39,159 - 5,261 37,597
Cash and cash equivalents ReRELEED - 14,079 49 45 29,148 41
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHB L RZE (14,229) (685) - (21,347) (668) -
Other payables Hi MR (81) - (1,316) (90) - (1,464)
Net exposure arising from BREEREE
recognised assets and liabilties MELZERFE (14,310) 16,420 37,892 (21,392) 33,741 36,174
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after taxation
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting

Sipe el %‘E

n.ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁliz
SFHE (&)

(d) EHmEkE (&)
(i)  HEETH
TR RS AR
BEEAYE Y EENZE
HH IR BB EERRATA
Hi RS g RS
RN ARE 2R ER

period had changed at that date, assuming (ES%#EETE)H /\EEZJT
all other risk variables remained constant. In 9= SHLULTE B AR
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged ’/%\ER%EE)]% PEREE A
rate between the HK$ and the US$ would H.%ER’%EEH‘HE@
be materially unaffected by any changes in = RPMIAEAPE
movement in value of the US$ against HK$.
The Group %M
2014 2013
Z2-mF —Z-=F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange loss after  accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses
Ext#/ BREER 2HER  EXtA/ BEgEE Z2itER
(T#) (8m)/®P (BW)/&D (&) (8 (Em) /R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN:T AEB®FT AEETT AEETT
Us$ e 2.5% 4 4 3.0% 34 34
(2.5%) (4) (4) (3.0%) (34) (34)
RMB ARE 2.5% 364 364 3.0% 740 740
(2.5%) (364) (364) (3.0%) (740) (740)
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(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i)~ Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—mOE+-A=t—HLFE

LFHE ()

(d) E¥mEk (&)
(i) HREZH (&)

The Company r. /N
2014 2013
—E-mE =
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange profit after  accumulated exchange loss after ~ accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses
Exl#/ BR&EN EHBR  EXrn/ REGEE ZiER
(T%) (8m)/®D  (2m) /R (T%) (&m)/®s  (&m) /B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT IN:1 5 ARETT ARETT
RMB ARE 2.5% 349 349 3.0% 857 857
(2.5%) (349) (349) (3.0%) (857) (857)
NTD Ha% 3% (366) (366) 5.7% (1,019) (1,019)
(3%) 366 366 (5.7%) 1,015 1,015

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group and
the Company which expose the Group and the
Company to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2013.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign
stock markets and structured deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated as at
FVTPL had been 10.00% (2013: 10%) lower/higher,
loss for the year and accumulated loss would increase
by RMB3,275,000 (2013: RMB1,726,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the Executive
Directors and the audit committee. A valuation report
with analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the
Executive Directors. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the Executive Directors and the audit
committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the
reporting dates.

32. BERREERMBIRZ
LFHE (&)

(e) ERREMR

REEASR 2 BB EREHER
KEEERBAFEFABRELZ
MBEE-

AREBEzEEES NEMERTD
REEKY  TREEBENEE
REAMINEAFE 52 E RN
BRITER  BEHRIESEFAR
RERBMETER -

AT BRRE D T RBER RS
R ARz #m ERRERMNE
5o

Wi E IR A EFT ABE 2 7%
BEZEERRD EIN10.00%
TE—=F:10%) BIAEH
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHRMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurements (Continued) ) AFEFZ(E)
The Group FEME

Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into 31 December 2013 categorised into
RIS-ME+ZAZ+-BMAFEHEDRE RIZ-ZEFZA=Zt-BOATEHENER

Fair value at Fair value at

31 December 31 December
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZIS-0%F RZ%-=F
+=8 TR
=+-A =t+-A

WATFE F-R el BZR  OLFE E F2F =B
RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR ARBTR ARRTR ABRRTR ARETI ARMTR  ARMTL ARETR

Asset HE
Financial assets designated as at FVIPL  5E AR ATFEFA

BaRzHBEE 45917 35917 10,000 - 40,558 40,558 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, REBEEZZT—NFR_T—=4%F

T-A=+—BHULFE F-EH
F_ETAZHELEEER  JES
FZEEARE -

there were no transfer between instrument in Level 1
and Level 2 or transfers into or out of Level 3.

$%ZE&Z%\7‘%E’\§*ELT‘*Z$&
THRER A FEER 2 ER -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Structured deposits are principal protected and only
the interest or yield on the deposit may be affected
by movements in the relevant reference value.
The structured deposits are valued using valuation
techniques with observable and unobservable inputs
principally comprising market interest rate.

Structured deposits are measured at fair value. Fair
value is estimated using net present value of estimated
future cash flow adjusted as appropriate for market
risk (interest rate risk).
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HEERBEERMEIAZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial instruments carried at amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2014

On 29 December 2014, the Company disposed all its
100% equity interests in Skyward Fountain Enterprise
Limited (“Skyward”) to an independent third party at a
consideration of HK$1. Skyward was engaged in investment
holding and its wholly owned subsidiary, Beijing Xizhou
Baushan Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Xizhou
Baushan”) was mainly engaged in provision of consultation
services in PRC.

33.

SFHE (&)

(9) WHAFEIRZHEIREZ
NS
AN B R AR B4R B R AR B BR
ZHBTAZEREELIN
T-—MFRER=ZFT—=F+=H
=t+t—HAZAFEITEERS
Al

HEHMELAT
BE-Z—NE+=-A=+—HL
FE

RNR-ZE—NE+_A=-+hHB XA
ALMABTARELRERREEFBRA
A) ([RFEI100% [ EER T B E =
o REZEXEBBIEER E2
BEWB AL R B EE LR AR AR
(MHERBABW AEERPEREMH
AR

2014
—ZE—mE

RMB’000
AR®FT

Consideration received BKE
Total consideration received in cash and
cash equivalents

BUERE LR FEMRELR
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMB AT ()

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control REEFHEZEEREBEDN
was lost
2014
—Z—m@mE
RMB’000
AR%TT
Non-current asset EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% B M 217
217
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H e W IR 8
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEFEY 613
621
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 838
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEME 2 TFEE
Consideration received ERRE =
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFEAE (838)
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified BREmENHDERERY
from equity to profit or loss ZEE N EE 42
Loss on disposal (note 5) & W as (B EES) (796)
The loss on disposal is included in “other net loss” line item HEBET AGEBRERT [HiEE
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. FHREJIEA -
2014
—Z—@mE
RMB’000
AR%TR
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZHERHBH
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of EHERS MRS EEMEH (613)
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents LA & R EZEWER
Bz RE =
(613)
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Disposal of 70% equity interests in Beijing Xizhou
Hangyu Property Management Company Limited
(“Xizhou Hangyu™”)

On 2 April 2013, Beijing Xizhou Baushan, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, established
Xizhou Hangyu in the PRC with an independent third party
which then became the non-controlling shareholder. Of
the registered capital or RMB1,000,000 of Xizhou Hangyu,
the Group held 70% of the equity interests and the non-
controlling shareholder held 30% of the equity interests.
Xizhou Hangyu was principally engaged in the provision
of supporting services to a cemetery located in Beijing,
including the overall planning, design and construction of
the cemetery.

On 18 December 2013, Beijing Xizhou Baushan disposed its
70% equity interests in Xizhou Hangyu to an independent
third party, at a consideration of RMB1,216,000.

33. HEMB2F (&)

BE_Z-=Fft-A=+—-HL
FE
HERIERGEMFYREEEBRL A
([T ) 270% KA i

RZTE—=FENA_H KNAFZHE
2EMBARIL ARG EE LE—BIEL
FE=H (HEKAIFERIRE) R F
R85 AT - B RAMFZAMER B
AR#1,000,0007T - HAKREEKZEG
IR R BB 70% K% 30% 2 i AR
Ez - BHRAMFNEBZER BRMANIE
Am—EERREYERS 2EEE
MEEEIRE Rt RER-

RZZE—=F+=ZA+N\B tREF
ZIWREERG AT Z270% 0% A%
Y R2BUFZH REBARE
1,216,0007T ©

2013
—E—=
RMB’000
ARBTT
Consideration received B E
Total consideration received NReFBEEFEMEAE K2
in cash and cash equivalents RERE 1,216
Analysis of assets and liabilities BERERHECEERARZAW
over which control was lost
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E B U IR 700
Cash and cash equivalents ReELRSEFEY 191
891
Current liabilities mENAR
Other payables A JE A 3R I8 (16)
16)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 875
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZIKE
Consideration received 2R E 1,216
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEZE (875)
Non controlling interests I 263
Gain on disposal (note 5) & W (PiFEs) 604

The gain on disposal is included in “other net loss” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

hER G ARG ERRT [EMER
FFEIHA -
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMB AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) BE-Z-—=F+ZA=t—-HL
FE (&)
2013
—_E—=%F
RMB’000
ARETF T
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBLARZHERANBRHE
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of EHERS MRS EEMEH (191)
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents LAIR & RIFE&ZEWHEA
Bz KB 1,216
1,025
3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HAZEFZEERSH
TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into the following material related AEEDETUTHESIZERS:

party transactions:

(@) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEAEHME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the FEEFEEBRAEMESBEX
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s NTPARRBESE (FOH 8T #
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the BIRETESFES (FHkME
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as OFTI%ER) 2 RIBMAT ¢
follows:

2014 2013

—Z—mEF =%

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Short-term employee benefits EHEBRT 4,678 5,279

Post-employment benefits BB ta A 29 31

Share-based payment DARR 17 2 B8 2 1~ K - 29

4,707 5,339

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FMasERt A TE IRA] (RKH
note 6(b)). F6(b)) °
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HEEAZETERXH (i)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(o)

(b) Remuneration for relatives of key by FEEBAEFBEZME
management personnel

Remuneration for relatives of key management TEEFZEBRAERBEZH®

personnel of the Group is as follows: NS

2014 2013

—F—mF —T=%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARET T

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 586 107
Post-employment benefits BB AR A 4 7
590 114

Other related parties transactions (0 HHEHMBAERIZRS

()  On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered (i) M_g—_i A—H &
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the NAE EBRE LA (T8
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien- e |) RIS IR AT Pl AR ok
Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark ([PEE R ) - FELEE
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the FRALREREMAEER
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use H B 5K AT AT R DA PR B AR &R
a number of trademarks and service marks in EREREEBEEcET
connection with the Group’s funeral services AEEREERS REAT
business at a consideration of HK$1,000 per 1,000/ 7T °
year.

(i) On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao (i MZEBEZE=F=A+mWAE-
Song Deed”) was entered into between Bau BFBEFTBEZL ([FL
Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li"), spouse of T BEEZERB) R
Mr. Liu, in relation to the land property situated BEREGRENEMAEE
in Taiwan at No. 943 in Section Linnei, Niao 943 5%« L% ([ /A
Song Township, Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the W) EI L — SRR
“Niao Song Property”). Under the Naio Song ([BIMEIE]) - BIFE SN
Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song B -BLUREERELEESZ
Property, which is owned by Bau Shan, shall SRMEBANETZET 24
be registered under the name of and held on Eil WAEERRXAE
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten WHH B-_TTMNF=H
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li TP HRF A TF T
has agreed that she shall act in the interest of TRERSRZEFHA -
Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song Property HEpSMysAE L2 T
during the term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 WITE - R_E—=F=H
March 2013, a renewal of Niao Song Deed was +HA BRIUEERNRE
entered into for a term of ten years commencing BH-_T-—=F=A+h
on 15 March 2013 to 14 March 2023. AR E_ZT_=F=FH

THE RETF-
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HEEAZITERH (i)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(0 Other related parties transactions
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing
the licensee, Chongging Xibao, to lawfully
use the property situated at unit 1404 on
Level 14, Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping
Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the “Licensed
Property”) as the registered office without
the payment of rent or licence fee. The
signed confirmation from Mr. Liu authorising
Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property
as its registered office does not limit Mr. Liu's
personal use, rental and mortgage of the
Licensed Property. There was no revenue or
profit contributed by the Licensed Property
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 as there had been no occupancy of the
Licenced Property during the years.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu
will last until 30 January 2052.

Guarantee for an amount of RMB31,089,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2013:
RMB30,318,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000))
is given by Mr. Liu to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group and the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014

(iv)

/@@LEZQE(@)

BEECDRIBRE RAE
ﬁT%ﬁ&Aé%%%Té
EFE AR R BEE MM
S B& 1 5% R BETE B 14121404
E2WME(FAIMEIE
A EE TR AT
AESHFTAE BT ER
FIMERE REEEHE
AT MEERT MW
NE B EBRR DL AES
ZEAYEERER HE
LEHRz - AREBEZFT
—EN—ZE—=F+_"A
—t+—HIFEREGERZ
SO AT A M E R F
PR A5 SR U s ok A o

BBF AR 2 MEA &
RERE_TH_F—A8
=+HIk

25 £ 5 AR #31,089,000
7t (8 & 75,000,000
L) (ZE—=ZF: AR
#30,318,0007T (HHE R
5,000,0003 7T) ) Z FIE R
HER EAEEZ-_F—1
F+-_A=Zt+—HILFEER
FAREBERAA R ZBITH
e
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35. EEHE

35. OPERATING LEASES

(@)

(b)

(o)

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

(@)

AEBEEREBEA

N _E—NFE+_A=+—8H"
RIE A SE A & 0 & B R
ZARREEHEENRBRE 2 EH
(EPB NS

The Group
FTEH

2014 2013
—Z—QmEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEF T
Within 1 year —FNR 8,554 14,135
After 1 year but within 5 years —FELRAFA 30,410 42,355
After 5 years hEE 48,677 41,261
87,641 97,751

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its sales offices and hire
of funeral parlours and funeral service centres. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 1 to 20 years (2013: 2 to
20 years) and certain leases include contingent rentals
which are based on certain percentage of sales and
the PRC consumer price index respectively.

EHEY HErEBHRESET
HERANENAABREENERE
RIS O ER Z S - L 2 F 5
EmEA—ZE-_+F(ZE—=
FZE-FF) BRTHOE
BEoRREHEERARBE DL
LA BEHEERIEETE A
e

The Group as lessor (b) AEBEERBHEA
At 31 December 2014, the Group had contracted with R-ZE—WNF+=-—_A=+—8"
tenants in respect of part of its office and plant and REBGRERHMRAEAREKE
equipment for the following future minimum lease FAE T EAA PRI A 2 RAR&RIK
payments: MERRENT:
The Group
T5E
2014 2013
—=—mE =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETF T
Within 1 year —FR 299 8
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRBERFHN 202 -
501 8
None of the lease includes contingent rentals. WA BER AR -
The Company had no significant operating lease (0 ARARZZE—NMNEFR_ZFT—=

commitments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

F+-_A=1+—HUTESALE
FHEFEIE-

TELEBEERRLE T -DFFR
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36.

37.

38.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

36.

BERiE

R BREARBHE IR _T—NEF
TZA=T—AMKBITZEAREER
T

The Group
*T%E
2014 2013
—S—mE T —=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Capital expenditure contracted but B LMERIEREE 2
not provided for: BARRXL
— Property, plant and equipment —W% - BEREE 23 1,024
— Investment in a joint venture —-R—EEEhEIERE 6,500 6,500
6,523 7,524

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings and other loan
of the Group were secured by land and buildings with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB17,462,000 (2013:
RMB20,482,000).

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended December 2014, the Company has
given corporate guarantee of RMB15,696,000 (equivalent
to NTD80,000,000) (2013: RMB16,192,000 (equivalent to
NTD80,000,000)) to a bank to secure the banking facilities
granted to Bau Shan. At 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no facilities were utilised by Bau Shan. The fair value of
the financial guarantee contract at the date of grant of
RMB1,951,000, representing a deemed capital contribution
to the subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2013,
has been adjusted to the carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries and recognised as a financial guarantee
obligation.
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37.

38.

BHEE

MNoZB—NE+-A=+—H KA&EH
RTEEMEGCERBARAREAAR
17,462,000 ( ZE—=4F: AR
20,482,0007T ) 2 b} 1 F VR 3 o

MERERE

HERZ-_Z—NUF+-ALEFE &R
RAEILERMNBTEEMECR XK
IRITIZME A R HEIR A R#15,696,0007T
(MR ¥ 4 180,000,000T) (=&
—=4F: AR#16,192,0007T (HEZER
& #80,000,000T) ) R ZE—F
Fo_E-—ZF+-_A=+—H EWI
REARVEEE - NIR T B BB ERE
LR FEHEARE1,951,0007T (BIR
HE_Z—=+-_A=1+—HIFE
BEMMBRARNTIE) BEAEER
MEBARZIRERERRE  WEREY
HEREE
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

39.

REBLARZRE

The Company

ELTF
2014 2013
—E—lE —E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREETF T
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LTS - HRAA 34,915 34,049
Unlisted capital contributions FELMEE 2,002 1,951
Amount due from FEUH B A R FRIB
a subsidiary (note (a)) (Ft5E(a)) 71,961 70,175
108,878 106,175
Less: Impairment losses (note (b)) B OREEE (M sE()) (15,576) (15,190)
93,302 90,985

Notes:

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and will not be
demanded for repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
amount forms part of the investment cost in the subsidiary.

() =ZE=REAEEM 2B AHAREN
BE-BZRR ZERBRME LR
BERAR—ED -

Movements in the impairment losses on investments in by RHBRRIEE ZREEEE
subsidiaries.
The Company
FLH
2014 2013
—Z—mEFE —E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFIT
At 1 January “n—A—H 15,190 15,667
Effect of foreign currency GNEETE 3, = B 7 22
exchange differences 386 (477)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8” 15,576 15,190

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
further acquired 40% equity interests in Sino-Departures
Limited, increasing its ownership interests to 100%. The
consideration of RMB1,092,000 were paid in cash. An
amount of RMB1,147,000 (being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of Sino-Departures
Limited) has been transferred from non-controlling interests.
The difference of RMB55,000 between the decrease in the
non-controlling interests and the consideration paid has been
credited to accumulated losses.

The Group does not hold any ownership interests in the
entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on the terms of the
Contract under which HLV Duc Hoa was established and
controlled by the Group, the Group receives substantially
all of the variable returns related to involvement in HLV Duc
Hoa's operations and net assets and has the ability to direct
HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most significantly affect those
returns.

© REBEZE-_Z—=%¢+-A=+—H
WHFEE - ARa#E—FSWEPRHX
TEBRDAZ40%MHE - 15 0 E
FrEREREI00% KREBAARK
1,092,000 L& - AR®
1,147,0007T ( BViZ b B FE (5 AR B 3% 17
EERAGFEECREMBE)EBIE
TR RS EE I o IR AR RS 2 R
EfREZ =% ARS50007TA A
Z5tEE-

(d) AEEIEEIFAHL Duc HoaZ (EfAIFT
ERERERS o AT ARIE A EBIRIARK L
R HLY Duc HoaZ 3% & B2 1§53
AN B ER 443 2 EPRAN 2 EEHLV Duc
Hoa% % 2 F BRI FEE  URE
BENTEHZEORETATE ZHY
Duc Hoa% 7
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39. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

—mE+=—A=

Notes: (Continued)

(e)  Details of the Company's subsidiaries, which are private
companies or, if established/incorporated outside Hong Kong,

T—HLEFE

IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. WM BATRZIRE (&)

B ()

(&) RZZE—HWHER-_ZFT—=F+=A1
=t+—R -ARazHERR (BFLA

have substantially the same characteristic as a Hong Kong A A (R B ERINE L FE K
private company, as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as V)EBHRBBLARRARBHERZ
follows: R 2 SHBIT
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
E30 T ERTREERAE
HELRRE IR AR gfEs {5 TERE/EEME
2014 2014 2013
Z§-BE  $-BE 5 =7
Directly held
Bau Shan* Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
N =) B REBRERE HER %Hﬁﬁ%
“AANETZAZTAA #2%70,452,000 RN RFEBR/ B8
Full Spread (China) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007
hm (B BRAR R 1AL REBR/EE
“ZZHEHARR
Allied Smart Development Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010
SEBRERAT & 1AL REBR/ R
“Z-TEMA-H
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and sale
9 August 2010 of funeral services deeds/Hong
Kong
FEED (BE)BRAA B 1T REBERER
“Z-TE)\ANR HERERBRN/BE
Dayrise Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Uss1
ARGRARAR ERRAHE il RERR/ERELHS
—Z-ZFAAT=H (ES
Jing Run Limited ** BVI Ordinary 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 US$1,000,000
RERRAR RERAHE B TER/ERARES
“Z-ZF-A1ZH 1,000,000 7
Skyward** Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
19 October 2011
RE* R 1AL REBR/EE
ZZ-—E+A1tNhE
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/Hong Kong
Limited** 17 April 2012
& 1T TER/EE
“Z-ZEMATA

3
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Notes: (Continued)

(e)
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IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. WBARZIRE (&)

BifeE: (48D

(Continued) ©) (&)
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
31 v BRTRMERAR
HELERE BI&E B8 ERES 113 TERYE/BEMR
2014 2014 2013
e
Indirectly held
MERE
Bao De** Taiwan Ordinary 83.33% 8333%  Inactive/Taiwan
6 November 2000 NTD108,000,000
L i il TER/AE
14 %108,000,0007C
Ban Shan Consulting Limited** Samoa Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services/
14 November 2013 US$1 Taiwan
BED il RUHARE,/AiE
-T-=% %7
T—AtME
Chongging Xibao* The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services
19 March 2007 US$8,000,000 and investment holding/
The PRC
ERHE* HE HMER REBERBER
ZZ2TEZATAR 8,000,000 7 AR/ HE
Chongging Xizhou** The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/
25 October 2006 RMB300,000 The PRC
ERHA B AR RERERS/ PE
b2 ARM300,0007
TA-tAA
Sino-Life Eternities Limited** BVI Ordinary 78.75% 7875%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 US$10,000
PEMEGERAT ERRAES L REAER/EBRERES
“Z-TEMATER 10,000 7T
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 Hong Kong
PEFEGRBERDF Bk %7 WRRE /B
“2-%f%
mA=+H
Jinhao Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Us$1
EREEBRAF EBRREE T RELR/ERERES
E-%F %7
hA+=H
Sino-Departures Limited** Hong Kong HK$5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
(note (c)) 5 December 2011 Hong Kong
PERITERRAR (Fi0) Bk ST WRRE /B
“2——F
+ZAER
Bao Son Life** Vietnam Paid up capital 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US§200,000
BllAm il BRBA REER,/ 8
—T-ZHRAZTH 200,000% 7
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. RMBARZIRE ()

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Moz : (&)
(e)  (Continued) (e) (&
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
30 BETRMERNRE
KELATER BRI ER A BEfEx L1 TERE/BENE
2014 2014 2013
2-mE g-mE e
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERs (8)
HLV Duc Hoa** Vietnam Paid up capital - - Sale of burial plots and provision of
(note (d)) 22 June 2012 VND39,750,000,000 cemetery maintenance services/
Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa** (f#(d)) i3 ARRANEE HEEMRRE
ZE-CER 39,750,000,0007C HEKERE,/ MR
A-t+=8
Bejjing Xizhou Baushan* The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of consultation services/The
8 October 2012 US§1,000,000 PRC
ERBEZ W HE FHER REHARE,/PE
-5+ ANH 1,000,000% 7T
* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * HNEBE
** A limited liability company > BRALRQA
()  The following tables list out the information relating to H TEREIIERAEBSHELE (B

each of the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non-
controlling interest (“NCI"”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

BEAFERER)NEN - TXE2W
ZHBEMBERRETEMNARE

HiEATZ 2/

2014 2013
—ZE—@mE —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARKET T
Jing Run Limited REARAT

NCI percentage JEERER A DL 45% 45%
Current assets MENE E 7,188 7,022
Non-current assets FEMENEE - -
Current liabilities mEEE - -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = -
Net assets BEFE 7,188 7,022
Carrying amount of NCI JEVERR R BREE 3,235 3,160
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year REEEIE (13) )
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWE (BE)E%E 166 (222)
Loss attributable to NCI IEERE R IEE 2 1R (6) (M

Total comprehensive income/(loss) AR FE(L 2
attributable to NCI 2EE (BE) B8 75 (100)
Dividend paid to NCI AT F IR R 2 IR A - -
Cash flows from operating activities & & EE)H & 7 (13) (3,644)
Cash flows from investing activities & & EEE &R = -
Cash flows from financing activities ~ BB EBIRE R 9 (346)
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URBRERZXEEBRHSERZES
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme"”) was approved and adopted. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(@)

(b)

(9

(d)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group
as incentive or rewards for their contributions to the
Group.

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest, including any
executive directors and any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; and (ii) any consultants, advisers, agents,
partners or joint-venture partners of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of
that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
year end date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Unless approved by the Company'’s shareholders, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any participants in
any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no
such offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme or the termination of the scheme. An offer
shall be deemed to have been accepted by the eligible
participant concerned in respect of all shares which are
offered to such participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
eligible participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company, within such time as may be specified
in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 5 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the
notice is given.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#&)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as (i) SEEEREZIERNIEED
follows: T
Number of
shares issuable Contractual
under options Life of life of
granted  period options
Bz B fE bRt
ARTRHEBE AREH AHER
Options granted in 2010:
RIZ-TFERE 2 BRE:
Options granted to directors:
RTERZBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-FTF_A+—H —E-ZFN\A+—-BZE 106
“Z-TF-A+-H
Options granted to employees:
RTEECBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-TF-A+—H —E-ZFN\R+—BZ 106
—ZETFE_A+—H
Options granted to consultants:
RTEMZBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-FTF_A+—H —E-ZFN\A+—-BZE 106
“Z-TF-A+-H
Total share options 60,000,000
R AR
Options granted in 2012:
RIT-ZFRHE 7 BRE:
Options granted to directors:
RYERBRE:
—-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-R-E——F—H+XH —E-=F—-HA+XBZE 54
—Z—+tF—HA+HA
Options granted to employees:
RTEECHBRE:
—on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
—-RZE-_F—-HA+<H I A CES 56
—E—+H5—HA+hH
Total share options 16,920,000

BREBE

The method of settlement for the options granted are

BEZBRRBIRAEREE

by equity. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 11 February 2010 and 16 January
2012, the dates on which the options were granted,
were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24 respectively.

AR ARBRMDABEE —ZT —
ZFE-_A+—BN T ——F—
A+7<8 (BEREERL 28
) ai W EDRIA1.168T R
0.2478 7T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —NF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. IBREEHRMNEERZ X

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#&)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end of () RIMEHRZMARITEEERER
the reporting period are as follows: BT
2014 2013
—B-mE =5
Number of Number of
Weighted shares Weighted shares
average issuable average issuable
exercise  under options exercise under options
price granted price granted
miEFEy HSHZERE MEF BE 2 BRE
fHER TRITRIZHAE I6E FETROEE
Outstanding at the FPRRITE
beginning of the year HK$1.08# 7T 62,552,000 HK$1.06/8 7T 66,032,000
Lapsed during the year EREEM HK$0.85:& 7T (2,712,000)  HK$0.607 T (3,480,000)
Outstanding at the end of ~ F&R KT
the year HK$1.09# 7T 59,840,000 HK$1.0878 7T 62,552,000
Exercisable at the end of FHRA TR
the year HK$1.09#& 7T 59,840,000 HK$1.0678 7T 52,652,000
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(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=
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B 1% el a= B 5T
—E-pmF+-B=t+—BItFE
40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. LREEHBROEERZE

% (#&)

)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at

(%)

S e AL E NN 4C E N

the end of the reporting period are as follows: FEEIIEEARR AT
Number of shares
issuable under  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2014 options granted  period period price
HEHERE
ZB-mE+ZA=1+-8 URITROAKE BEY fTHER fiE®
Options granted to employees:
RTEE 2 HRE:
-on 11 February 2010 9,020,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF_A+-A “T-TF-F+-AZ “Z-TF)\R+-HE 1.18% 7T
—Z-ZFN\RTH “ZZTECAT-H
Options granted to consultants:
RTER 2 BARE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZZE-TFZA+-H “E-ZF-f[+-HZ ZZ-ZF)\f+-AZ 11887
“Z-ZE\ATH “E-TE-AT-H
Options granted to a director:
BI—1gFzBRE:
—on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZEB-—F-A+KHA “E2-—E-A+RAE “FZF-ARAEE 0.6078 7
Z2-=f-RA+IH T—t+¥-A+HA
Options granted to employees:
BYEEZBRE:
-on 16January 2012 6,920,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RIE-ZF-A1RA ZZ-"F-R+REE ZZ-ZE-RtRAZE 0.607%7T
“Z-=%-A+IH “Z2—+%-A+EA
Total share options outstanding 59,840,000
HATTREREEY
Number of shares
issuable under  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2013 options granted  period period price
HEHZERE
ZZ-Z¥+ZAZt+-H TRTRABE BREX fTEs fiE®
Options granted to employees:
BYEEZBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 10,172,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZZE-TFZA+-H e s = ZZ-ZF)\f+-AZ 11887
“Z-ZE\RTH “E-TE-AT-H
Options granted to consultants:
BT R BBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF-A+-AH —Z-T4-f+-HE —Z-ZF)\f+-HZE 1188
—Z-ZFN\RTH BE B Yy P
Options granted to a director:
BRY-—2ERZRRE:
-on 16January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-R= —A+RA ZT-Z¥-fA+BE ZZ-ZE-ftREZE 0.60/%7T
“Z-=%-A+xH —Z—+F—-A+EH
Options granted to employees:
RYEEZBRE:
-on 16 January 2012 8,480,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-ZF-A+XA “E-—5-At+7HE N AGES 0.60/7T
T2 =x"ptIA —EF-AtEA
Total share options outstanding 62,552,000

HARTRRRELE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2014
had exercise price ranging from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18
(2013: from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.7 years (2013:
5.6 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2014, 1,420,000 of 50,920,000 options (2013:
2,572,000 of 52,072,000 options) were exercisable
in the same year of the date of grant with 50% each
of the options granted exercisable at six months and
at the end of the year from the date of grant and
49,500,000 of 50,920,000 options (2013: 49,500,000
of 52,072,000 options) are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the options
granted exercisable at six months and first calendar
date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2014, all of the 8,920,000 (2013: 10,480,000)
unexpired and unexercised share options granted on
16 January 2012 were exercisable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(i)

Granted to director and employees

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.

% (#&)

(k) BREZDFERRR

(i)

RTEERES
AREBAR KB ES
2R R HESERERE
Bz AT EAE - BRE
Pt 2 (b st FHER —AR
HREEERAGE - B
ZAMFER/AEANZ IR
BASH-

2012
—E—-—F
Fair value of share options et =2 B HEERE 2 A FE HK$0.04
at measurement date 0.04% 7T
Share price = (& HK$0.23
0.23#87T
Exercise price TR fE HK$0.60
0.06/ 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — F& R 18 (LA — B = HA%E
average volatility used in the modelling EERAEKAR
under Binomial Option Pricing Model) HNHE YR 0E ) 50.23%
Option life (expressed as weighted average &A% AE A HA (LA — 18 5 HA4E
life used in the modelling under the EEEAANKA 5 years
Binomial Option Pricing Model) hntE 9 ER) 54
Expected dividends TEHARR 2 -
Risk-free interest rate B R R =
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) (RIBINEES ZE) 0.85%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

B HR bR T IR IR LR R
(LARE B HE 2 hnge 725 R 84
FHAE)FE - BRER
TREMNERFERRE
TBHPRIE 2 ZBIEHAE -
BEHMBREDREBEBEREE
EoMRAIBRRZED
AREH R FEMBFEEER

S/ 488
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(1)

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by the
consultants, taking into account the uniqueness
of the services provided by the consultants, the
historical monthly payments to similar services
provided by the consultants and the service
period, along with other out of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2014, 41,900,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme are
granted by the Company to the consultants
of the Group which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of
the Company with an exercise price of HK$1.18
per share during the exercisable period from 11
August 2010 to 11 February 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. &t R (& &t
ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation of an entity in which the
Group does not hold any equity interests
The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under which
HLV Duc Hoa was established and controlled by
the Group, the Group receives substantially all
of the variable returns related to involvement in
HLV Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and
has the ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities
that most significantly affect those returns. The
directors of the Company considered that the
Group has maintained de facto control in HLV
Duc Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans

The Group enters into contracts with its
customers in Vietnam for sales of burial plots
under which customers are allowed to settle the
contract amount by interest-free instalments.

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of
burial plots when risks and rewards of ownership
of burial plots transferred, i.e. the contract is
signed by the customers, the burial plots are
delivered, and collectability of the contract
sum is reasonably assured. Before a significant
amount of the contract sum has been collected
and the burial plots are delivered, the Group
does not recognise it as revenue. At this stage,
the Group records all payments received as
“receipts in advance”. When significant amount
of the contract sum has been collected and the
burial plots are delivered, the Group records the
full contract sum as revenue and any unsettled
contract sum is recognised as receivables.

(@) ERAXEESHBRZERS

Egal
(i)

(ii)

i
BN EE L BT EFTR
BHEE

AEEBTEFZTEEEHLY
Duc HoazZ {E1{a] FT & 1 #&
oM BIBAEBIEIA
A7 I3 HIHLY Duc Hoa”
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#e3r 2 E RN 2 B HLY Duc
Hoa% 7% 2 2 )Rl M F &
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3 R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans (Continued)

The directors exercise significant judgement in
evaluation whether revenue recognition criteria
are met. In their evaluation, the possibility of
terminating such transactions due to non-
payment by customers, are taken into account
after considering the local industry practice. The
directors concluded that when 20% of the total
contract sums in relation to sales of burial plots
is received and the burial plots were delivered,
the collectability of the remaining contract sum
is reasonably assured, sales is recognised to
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
amounts of revenue recognised from the sale of
burial plots amounted to RMB1,808,000 (2013:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the receipts in
advance in relation to sale of burial plots before
sales are recognised as revenue amounted to
RMB1,519,000 (2013: RMBNIil).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014

(@) EAXEESHBEZERE

sHHER (&)
(i) FERKEZT Rt B

EZMh o Wz ()

EERAEARHE AT EZ
BREEWRERIRE LR
S AR BEREEHE
NEHIE FHERZXTERE
ZERHARPAREZTM
BIEMTTEEME-EER A
WBEBEIEE 2B NS HE
EARBRESTM20% M EM
B R4 B & B T8 Hge ik
B TaEeE ZEHE
IR A B P R

REE-_T—WOF+=A
—t+t—HIEFE E£X£BE
S EERKEAA
R #51,808,0007T (=& —=
FomE) o

RN_T—WE+_R=+—
B -EmEEmRHE&

MEKRzZZREAE AR
1,519,0007C ( — T — =4
AREEZIL) o



(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B F = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains allowance for doubtful
debts based on evaluation of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables, where applicable,
at the end of each reporting period. The
estimates are based on the ageing of the trade
and other receivable balances and the historical
write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the
financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment allowance
might be required.

(b) fEFHTHAMEREZEEZRIR
UATRERRKzETERRRK
WA Ko i ¥ & B K8 R B Rl ]
EEHTEMBFREZEELR
B2 BREEAFEREAE 25
TEARARAI 2 2 E Al E Z R ©

(i)

(ii)
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3 R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

If circumstances indicate that the investments in
subsidiaries may not be recoverable, investments
in subsidiaries may be considered impaired,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets. The carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries is reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amount
has declined below the carrying amount.
The asset is tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recorded carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for investments in subsidiaries are not
readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the
investments in subsidiaries are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume,
tariffs and amount of operating costs of the
subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount. Including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sale volume, tariffs and amount of
operating costs of the subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
=+ A
B AR R B
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE
41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3l R &5t (&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) EEFFFAPERZEEZRIEF

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued) (#8)
(iv) Net realisable value of inventories and (iv) ZEREMBRHZRKTKEK
development and formation costs of graves H9 ] & 5 F 8

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
the development and formation costs of graves
which takes into account costs to completion
based on management’s experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to
completion or a decrease in net sales value,
the net realisable value will decrease which
may result in writing down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying
value of development and formation costs of
graves is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3 R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC, Vietnam
and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BiZ T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FHEFTHBAEEZEZEEZRR
(Continued) (#8)
(vii) Provision on funeral services deeds (vii) FE1EIRFE A Z IR

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral
services deeds by adding a margin to the
estimated cost of delivering funerals services in
future, after taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the
Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds
from sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance for
funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and
determine the need of making a provision in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z =T -+ -_A=+—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3 R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(viii) Fair value measurements and valuation

processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating the
fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available
and appropriate valuation technique. Where
market-observable data are not available, the
Group may adopt unobservable inputs based
on their best estimate. Management may also
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. Management work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Group uses established
appropriate valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain
assets. Notes 15, 17 and 32(f) provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2014

(b) HEFTHEBEREZZEFERR
%)
iii) X FEFERGEES

RUABREMS  NEBZ
HOBEENAFEFTE A
NAEFEBTETEENATF
BEFTENHERMTME A
B AEEGHFEENRAT
ERERAA A TS B
HEREEHERM &M
SABREBETTA A%
B HAERESEGTE
BRI BN AE BE
EBaAZEE=FEERM
BERMETHE-EREES
B &R N ERD =) A
VB AL E M E T &
HE R AE - g e
BEEEZAFEME &
EEEARSWIFERATH
RMISHEMEEABZD
W E AT - AR
TEEEEEANFEENGEE
g - AEREBRREL
= B M FETS B EE17 2B
FE32()H R



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &=

2. REE_E—

42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these

BT R P ot
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AR B30 R BB 5 R A

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2010-2013 cycle'

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2010-2014 cycle*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations*

Disclosure Initiative*
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NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014 (Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements*

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016, with earlier application permitted

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018, with earlier application permitted

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the Group’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (that is, the
Group's financial year which began on 1 January 2015) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only
affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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